CHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

REGULAR MEETING

OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
JUNE 18, 2019
4:30 pm
BREC Administration Building 6201 Florida Boulevard
Commission Room
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

AGENDA

I CALL TO ORDER: Mr. Mark Bellue
L. ROLL CALL: Ms. Amie McNaylor
lll. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF MAY 21, 2019 MEETING: Mr. Mark Bellue
IV. PRESIDENT’'S ANNOUNCEMENTS: Mr. Mark Bellue
V. SAFETY MOMENT: Ms. Renee Simpson
VI. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
1. Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff
Vil. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ANY ACTION THEREON
1. Finance & Executive: Mr. Mark Bellue
2. Technical, Policies & Practices: Dr. Peter Breaux (no meeting held)
3 Audit: Mr. Kahli Cohran
a. Presentation of 2018 audit: Postlethwaite & Netterville

Planning: Mr. Kevin O’Gorman
Community Relations: Ms. Linda Perkins

o R



Vill. ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of authorization for cost expenditures associated with
NEPA completion and fifteen per cent (15%) design for Plank-Nicholson
BRT Corridor Project

2, Consideration of approval to award contract for design services for transit
amenities

3. Consideration of authorization for the CEO to settle the claims of Arthur

Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis under the
terms of the settlement and judgment payment policy adopted by the
Board on July 20, 2004 as amended. (This matter might possibly be
discussed in executive session. As required by the Open Meeting Law,
notice is hereby given that this claim is pending in the 19™ Judicial
District Court and is Suit Number 640,054, Sec. 22; and that Arthur Davis,
Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis are the plaintiffs and
Capital Area Transit System and Eric Marselis are the defendants.)

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

X. ADJOURNMENT

Individuals having questions regarding the meeting should contact Amie McNaylor,
225.389.8920, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, L.A 70802.

Individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should contact
Karen Denman (225) 389-8920, Ext. 1504, 2250 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA
70802, no later than 4:00 p.m. on the Monday immediately preceding the Tuesday

meeting.

MY




V.

CAHTS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM
AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
MAY 21, 2019
4:30 p.m.
BREC Administration Building
6201 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70806

MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER: Ms. Erika Green

Ms. Green called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL

Present at the meeting were members Messrs. Brandt, Breaux, and
Lambert and Mss. Green, Perkins and Pierre. Also present were Mr. Bill
Deville, CEO; Mr. Darrell Brown, CAO; other CATS staff; Creighton Abadie,
CATS attorney; and members of the public.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF APRIL 16, 2019 MEETING

Mr. Brandt moved to approve the minutes of the April 16, 2019, meeting and

Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and
there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

PRESIDENT’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Ms. Green noted there were no announcements.
SAFETY MOMENT

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment centered on computer eye strain
prevention.



Vi.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1.

Executive and Financial Report: Mr. Bill Deville and Executive Staff

Mr. Jim Fight shared that the agency organized a roundtable with
community workforce stakeholders that is part of the broader
initiative to create a pipeline for local talent. There were
representatives frem various workforce agencies, BRCC, and several
youth outreach programs. Also in attendance were CATS Board
members Antoinette Pierre and Linda Perkins.

CATS is planning a job fair to recruit for maintenance and operations
positions. The fair, Behind the Wheel, will be held at the Automotive
Campus of BRCC on Tuesday, June 4" from 12:00 until 6:00 p.m. The
agency will have CATS staff on hand to conduct on-the-spot
interviews with the hope of hiring operators and mechanics as
quickly as possible. Human Resources and Communications are
working together to produce materials to distribute prior to the
event, and there will be radio spots promoting the job fair as well.

Ms. Dwana Williams shared that, in Operations, there are currently
134 active operators. There are 13 inactive operators due to workers’
compensation, light duty, and FMLA.

Ms. Williams noted that CATS had 201,647 passenger trips in April.
There were 1.4 preventable accidents per 100,000 miles, and 827
trips cancelled of the approximately 33,000 trips for the month. The
percentage of on-time trips was 64.49%, there were 42.2 complaints
per 100,000 miles, and there were 7,583 mean miles between road
calls for the month.

Mr. Deville reported that CATS was invited to attend the May gth
Baton Rouge North Economic Development District “Transportation
Drives Economic Development” luncheon panel discussion. The
event was part of the BRNEDD’s week of events highlighting the
North Baton Rouge area. CATS Board Vice-President Erika Green
was the moderator for the panel discussion. CATS Board Treasurer
Kahli Cohran and Bill Deville joined Dr. Shawn Wilson, Secretary of
LaDOTD; Mike Edwards, Director of Aviation/BTR; Bryan Jones of
HNTB; and Kelvin Hill, East Baton Rouge Parish Assistant CAO as
paneiists for the discussion.

CATS was invited to participate in the stakeholder group meeting
regarding the Baton Rouge Zoo and Greenwood Community Park




Master Plans that involved various scenarios for transportation to
and from both venues.

The agency was also invited to attend and present a CATS status
report to the members of the Mid-City AARP Group that is
represented by members from across Baton Rouge. The meeting
was well attended, enthusiastic, and they had lots of questions.

Mr. Rose let the board know that Planning has submitted its Five
Year Program of Projects for inclusion in the June 2019 TIP/STIP.

The Planning and Grants staff met with Pierlott & Associates to
review information requested by the FTA for the Triennial Review
that is scheduled for August 7-8" in Baton Rouge.

The Planning staff is scheduled to meet with Qur Lady of the Lake
staff to discuss CATS service to the new hospital campus.

Planning continues to refine the FTA FY2019 grant award
applications.

Mr. Deville let the board know that, regarding the Cortana-Walmart
Transit Center, Operations has successfully and safely relocated its
service stops and shelters from the Walmart side to the Mall side of
Cortana Place. Kelly Construction continues to work with DPW to
resolve traffic and safety issues. Demolition of the site is underway.
Safety fencing and debris controls are in place, along with
construction equipment and a construction trailer. Further
demolition of the Oak Villa Street side is pending approval of the
traffic and safety plan.

CATS and the City-Parish are currently in discussion to review
additional cost requests to cover the NEPA {(National Environmental
Protection Act) study for the Plank Phase One and Plank-Nicholson
Phase Two projects. Once additional funding has been approved,
CATS and HNTB will prepare support documentation to secure
environmental clearance for the Plank and Plank-Nicholson projects.
A Categorical Exclusion is anticipated permitting both phases to
proceed.

Mr. Deville shared the statement of budgeting versus actual and
noted that year-to-date, CATS had $8,599,860 in total operating
expenses. For the current month, there was$2,149,179 in totai
operating expenses. There was $301,227 in CATS generated revenue,
$2,269,150 in non-federal subsidies, and $2,996,138 in federal
subsidies.




IX.

Mr. Brandt gave an update on the pension system. He noted that it is
governed by a separate board that is comprised of four members: two are
selected by the ATU — Mr. Al Weeden and Mr. George Decuir ~ and two are
selected by the agency — Mr. Tom Hanlon and Mr. Brandt.

The pension board oversees the assets and investments and also sets
policies and procedures for the administration of the benefits for the
pension.

G.S. Curran, Limited is the private contractor to provide administrative
staffing for the pension fund and as the actuarial consultant. Edward
James is the investment advisor for the pension fund.

The pension board received its annual update last month and the pension
is healthy, strong, and well positioned for the future. This system is 105%
funded. There are no unfunded accrued liabilities for the system.

A 2% cost of living increase has been unanimously approved for the
members of at least one year. This is the first since 2007 and it is fully
funded by employee (7%) and employer (8%) contributions.

The ten year average rate of return is 7.8% even though there was a loss in
2018.

There are more than $14 million in assets and more than 200 active
members. Moving forward, the pension board unanimously voted to lower
the returned rate of return to 5.75%. This keeps the pension from relying on
excessive rates of return.

Mr. Brandt recognized and thanked both Mr. Weeden and Mr. Decuir for all
their hard work and noted that he enjoys working with them,

ACTION ITEMS

1. Consideration of authorization to award professional services
contract to Pierlott & Associates

Mr. Darrell Brown let the members know that Pierlott & Associates
has done work under two separate contracts with CATS for DBE
Program assessment and improvements and for FTA compliance
review.

CATS is requesting that the board authorize the CEQ to enter into a
contract with Pierlott & Associates for an estimated amount of
$144,349.




Mr. Brandt moved that the CEO Is authorized to enter into a contract
with Pierlott & Associates for an amount not to exceed $144,349 for
compliance oversight and Ms. Perkins seconded the motion. Ms.
Green invited public comment and there was none. The motion
passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Ms. Green moved to amend the agenda to include an action item to
award a consultant contract to New Age Industries. She noted the
item was discussed at the F&E Committee meeting. The motion was
seconded by Ms. Pierre. Ms. Green invited public comment and there
was none. Mr. Brandt noted that he did not have an objection to
placing the item on the agenda but shared he would be asking to
defer the item. The motion unanimously passed with no abstentions.

Consideration of award of consuitant contract to New Age Industries

Ms. Green noted the item was discussed in the F&E Committee and
shared that Mr. Deville has expressed desire to have the services of
Mr. Toliver once again as Mr. Deville feels that he has been an
invaluable resource to Mr. Deville and the agency. Mr. Toliver is
assisting with the placement of a permanent Deputy CEO.

Mr. Brandt noted that there were three board members absent from
this meeting — Messrs. Bellue, Cohran, and O’Gorman — and he felt
they should be present for the discussion. He shared that he had
questions that were raised at the F&E Committee meeting regarding
the contract that have not been answered to this point. Those
questions included a breakdown of the itemized budget including
travel and lodging, the duration of the contract, and a detailed scope
of work for what his assignments would be.

Mr. Deville shared that this contract is similar in nature to other
contracts he has executed. Mr. Deville noted that Mr. Toliver came to
CATS when Rod Goldman left the agency and that his initial charge
was to find a replacement COO. Mr. Deville then chose to do a
reorganization of the agency and thought it would be wise in his
vison to create a Deputy CEO position. Mr. Deville then named Ms.
Dwana Williams as the COO and wants her to report to the Deputy
CEO. Mr. Toliver was nominated for APTA’s Hall of Fame, he has
managed systems throughout the country, and the agency is lucky
to have him.

Mr. Deville let the members know that in the past, CATS was able to
utilize his services for four and a half months without exceeding
$50,000.




Mr. Brown noted that he was under the impression that the DCEOQ
would mentor the COO to support the CEQ’s efforts to prepare for
upcoming initiatives. Mr. Brown suggested bringing the item to the
board in the interest of transparency. Mr. Brown shared that when
the previous CFO left the agency and CATS contracted with a
consultant for an interim period, there was an initial contract that
was amended with the board’s approval. This was the precedent for
bringing this contract to the board.

Ms. Green inquired whether anything in the original contract would
be changing in the new contract and it was noted that neither the
contract for New Age Industries nor the scope of work was shared
with CATS legal counsel.

There was discussion regarding the practice of contracts being
executed and whether they were reviewed by legal counsel before
execution.

There was discussion regarding the specifics of the contract and
when Mr. Deville would be able to provide that information to the
board members. Mr. Deville noted that he would absolutely provide
that information, that it is under $50,000, and as noted in the
financials, the agency can afford it. Mr. Deville feels that it is
detrimental to the agency to continue to delay the approval of the
contract.

Mr. Brandt moved to defer the item.

Ms. Pierre inquired how long it would take to get the information
requested by Mr. Brandt to the full board and whether Mr. Brandt
would be willing to put his questions in writing so the CEO may
answer them. Mr. Deville indicated he could provide the information
within 24 hours. Mr. Brandt noted that the information was requested
at the F&E Committee meeting and they were informed they would
receive it in 24 hours, but, to this point, the information has still not
been provided. Given that there was nothing to present, Mr. Brandt
recommended the item be deferred. Mr. Brandt reiterated he was
seeking the scope of work, detailed budget, length of time Mr. Toliver
would be onsite, and the basics of the contract. Ms. Green suggested
that the contract be provided to legal counsel so that he may review
it and disseminate it to the board members.

There was no second to the motion to defer.




XI.

Ms. Perkins inquired why the board was only receiving the
information today when it had been on previous agendas. She also
inquired as to why it was added and removed from several agendas.

Ms. Perkins moved that the CEOQ is authorized to enter into a contract
with New Age Industries for the services discussed and to serve as
an interim Deputy CEO for an amount not to exceed $50,000. Ms.
Green seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public comment and
there was none. Four members voted yes, there were zero nays, and ,
two members abstained. The motion passed.

3. Consideration of authorization for the CEO to settle the claims of
Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha Davis, and Carla Davis
under the terms of the settlement and judgment payment policy
adopted by the Board on July 20, 2004 as amended. (This matter
might possibly be discussed in executive session. As required by
the Open Meeting Law, notice is hereby given that this claim is
pending in the 19" Judicial District Court and is Suit Number
640,054, Sec. 22; and that Arthur Davis, Sr., Arthur Davis, Jr., Artisha
Davis, and Carla Davis are the plaintiffs and Capital Area Transit
System and Eric Marselis are the defendants.)

Mr. Brandt moved to enter executive session to discuss the pending
litigation. Ms. Pierre seconded the motion. Ms. Green invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with
no abstentions.

Ms. Green noted that public comments would be taken upon the
board’s return from executive session.

At this point, the board entered into executive session.
Following the executive session, this item was deferred.
PUBLIC COMMENTS
There were no public comments.
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Brandt moved to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Pierre seconded the
motion. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.




CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

EXECUTIVE REPORT
June 2019
Bill Deville and Executive Staff

- EXECUTIVE STAFF

SAFETY MOMENT: Renee Simpson
June is National Safety Month, and the agency would like to recognize the following
operators who have had zero accidents in the last twelve months:

Bill Deville
Chief Executive Officer

Darrell Brown
Chief Administrative Officer

Dwana Williams
Chief Operations Officer

breats.com

e Frederica e Toye Hebert LaDonna
Albert e Kimla Hudson Robertson

e Tabitha e Kimberly Diana
Armwood Johnson Robinson

e Falesha e Natasha Juanita
Augustus Johnson Sanford

e Janie Brown e Charisa Jones Sandra

e Jerry Brown e Janice Kinchen Sparrow

e Michael Butler e Reginald Terrica Tanner

e Jacqueline Cain Lanieu Robert Tate

e Regina e Samual Lee Debra Taylor
Celestine e Gretchen Ebony Thomas

e Shontel Major Evette Thomas
Chenevert e \Walter Mattire Tiffany Variste

e Michelle e Beverly Andrus Walker
Cockerham McMorris Jennifer Watts

e Shekar Gibson e Alethea Olinde Chaundra

e Marlon Gotch e Jamira White

o Demetrice Patterson Terez Wicker
Green e Zaldreka Tammy Wilson

e Alfreda Reddix
Harrison

HUMAN RESOURCES: Jim Fight

CATS hosted its Behind the Wheel Job Fair on Tuesday, June 4™ at the

Automotive Campus of BRCC.

o More than 250 job seekers came to the event and more than 196

were interviewed by CATS staff on hand for the event.

o The agency looks to make up to 35 potential offers based on the

interviews conducted.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: Dwana Williams

Operations now has 127 active.

See attached Performance Measures.



2250 Florida Boulevard C' I I S

Baton Rﬂuge LA 70802 CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

PHONE:  225.389.8820

CEO NOTES: Bill Deville

e ETC Institute will be in Baton Rouge beginning June 17" to conduct the next
round of customer satisfaction surveys.

e Will Scott & Company, an executive search firm specializing in transit industry
hires, developed profiles on 26 candidates for the newly created Deputy Chief
Executive Officer (DECO) position.

o After reviewing the top ten candidate profiles, four finalists were
determined. Under the guidance of the Scott Company and our own
HR Director Jim Fight, two interview panels were established,
comprising a cross section of management staffers who conducted
group session interviews with candidates.

o Follow-up interviews were also held with ATU leadership as well as a
close-out interview with the HR Director and CEO.

o Two of the four candidates were interviewed; one declined to take a
higher paying management position with a southern Florida transit
agency, and the other removed themselves for personal health
reasons.

o A decision will be made within the next week to ten days. All
candidates were actively working and requested confidentiality in
case they didn’t get the position so they could maintain their current
jobs.

e The CEO was invited by the new BREC Superintendent, Corey Wilson, to meet
and discuss how BREC and CATS could collaborate. Mr. Wilson explained he
would like to see access to and from all of BREC facilities as this is key to its
current and future success.

o Mr. Wilson felt it was important to create a dialogue with CATS as
BREC embarks on several multimillion dollar capital investment
projects.

e There was discussion with Chris Tyson, President and CEO of the newly
rebranded Build Baton Rouge (formerly the East Baton Rouge Redevelopment
Authority) regarding any potential for New Markets Tax Credits (NMTC),
within our existing program and project sites

o Additionally, a meeting was had with BBR’s new markets tax credit
consultant group to review our capital and operation plans, looking
for potential NMTCs within the confines of our capital program sites.

e The CEO was invited to attend an Urban League Urban Round Table Luncheon
meeting on Wednesday, June 12"

e The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPQ) Transportation Policy
Committee (TPC), comprised of mayors and presidents of East Baton Rouge
and surrounding parishes as well as CATS, met on June 12”‘; the CATS
Preliminary Program of Projects was on agenda for approval.

EXECUTIVE STAFF

PLANNING AND GRANTS: Garrick Rose
e CATS Five Year Program of Projects was adopted at the June 12, 2019 MPO
Transportation Policy Committee.

brecats.com




2250 Florida Boulevard CI I I S

Baton Rl:luge LA 70802 CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

PHONE: 225389892

e Planning and Grants staff attended an FTA-sponsored Triennial Review
workshop in Baton Rouge on June 4" and 5%,

e Planning has a follow-up meeting scheduled with Our Lady of the Lake staff to
continue the discussion regarding CATS service to the new hospital campus,
slated to open in October 2019.

e Planning submitted a Bus and Bus Facilities grant award application for four
electric trolleys and six electric buses.

e The National Transit Database (NTD) report was submitted on May 31%.

 EXECUTIVE STAFF

FACILITIES PLANNING: James Baker or Garrick Rose
North Baton Rouge Transit Center:
e Legal counsel for CATS is working with LSU officials to complete certain
legislative requirements prior to executing the purchase agreement.
East Baton Rouge Transit Center — Cortana-Walmart Transit Center:
e Construction is underway at the Cortana Transit Center and the passenger
loading area is also proceeding.
o Demolition, site preparations, and electrical and security camera lines
are in place.
o Concrete work is progressing regardless of the recent rain events.
o DPW has approved the contractor’s traffic plan along Oak Villa Drive,
which allows the demolition of the bus staging area to proceed.

BUS RAPID TRANSIT:
Plank Road BRT, Phase One:

e The SIB engineering team continues to collaborate with the HNTB design
group as well as the City-Parish Department of Public Works to ensure
seamless cooperation and coordination for all station engineering and
amenities design decisions.

e It has been agreed that advancing the final engineering phase of Plank Road
Phase One is subject to environmental clearance for the entire Plank-
Nicholson BRT Project. Based on HNTB’s assessment, the environmental
approval is projected to be received in the fall.

Plank-Nicholson BRT:

e It has been agreed that the Plank-Nicholson BRT Project will pursue funding
under the BUILD grant application, which is due July 15", HNTB has discussed
on several occasions the rational to pursue the BUILD grant. CATS
management has reviewed HNTB's proposed work program to prepare to
advance conceptual design and NEPA materials as well as the BUILD
application.

o The project justification, work plan, schedule, and budget has been
determined to be acceptable. Critical in this effort is the expedient
production of material for the NEPA process and environmental
approval.

hreats.com




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

' EXECUTIVE STAFF

hreats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

BRT Transit Amenities:

After a successful RFQ evaluation process, a design firm has been deemed
qualified and responsible and has been selected to provide the necessary
design services for the fabrication, delivery, and installation of custom transit
shelters, an information kiosk, BRT signage, and other related amenities for
the BRT stations and high profile transit sites. A recommendation for an
approval to award a contract is listed as an action item.



LTY'ETT | L¥9'TOT | S8V'ETZ | €9T1'TCZ | ES¥'1ZC |6TOZ W

£29'€0¢

£20'91¢

ZT9'sve

99€'81¢

162412

£96'STT

¥9Y'TIT | €99°€2Z | T¥T'8TT | ¥ZE'TET | T60'61L | ¢55'91C |8T0Z ™

‘33Q

‘NON

10

dsg

“8ny

Ainr

aunr Aeln [dy BN ‘qa4 ‘uer

0000S

00000t

000°0ST

000‘002

000'05T

000°00€

WSS ISNAL B3 Ikl

diysiapry ClH]




50035 snq wialsAs (0101 3y Jo %/ €T JUFSaAdal YaIym Spurodarl pajnpayds 1o painspaw S| 3aupwiofiad awi-ug 310N

dUBWIOLID dWIL-UQ %08 1981e],

%I6'E9 | %6V'YV9 | %8909 | %9C L9 | %I6'L9

610Zm

%099 %8799

%E"99

%6°L9

%C°L9 %069 % 89 %8°L9 %' L9 %98'99 | %BE99 | %IL99

810z m

*23g

*NON

das

‘8ny Apng aunf Aepy judy yauep ER] ‘uef

IUBWIOMI dWI]-UQ

%000

%00°0T
%0002
%00°0€
%00°0%
%00°0S
%00°09
%00°0L
%0008
%00°06

%00°00T

LLEISHS LEHER] EHH THl]

5163




s8¢ v'6eE 9z¢ 91z vaz 6T €67 102 €6 99 eovz | s6zz | sduipsjeoued groz
S7'86% | Sv'/Z8 | €TIS | SE£00Z | 9€/T | sdul pajeoued 610z
0586 | 05.6 | 0586 | 0£66 | Ov'66 |paresado sdul v 6107
0,86 | 0686 | 0686 | 0E66 | 066 | Or66 | OI'66 | Ov66 | 0L'66 | 0866 | 0566 | 0566 |peresado sdil o 810z m
BETq| AON PO das any Inr unr Ay Ady BEEAT o4 uer
000
0002
-
m
3
m
z
00°0F ®
e
-
3
wn
o
k=]
®
. Q
0oy 2
o
0008

suoljejj2oue) sduij sng

i B T s o i

00°00T m n_nmu



S3IINl 000°00T 42d SIUBPIIY I|qeIuaAd.d §°Z 1954,

01 0¢ L1 8's 7' 610Z ™
6'T €¢ €1 81 9T LT LT 91 Lo €1 TT S'E 810z m
223 *AON 120 ‘3das 8ny Anr aunr LT [dy yaaepl ‘ged ‘uer 0
T
[4
€
14
S
9
L

S9Nl 000°00T 42d S1uapI2IY 3|qejuanaid

L34S LISKHHL 38 HiG)

5183




sguipseog 000°00T 42d sjulejdwio) 1aW03SN) gz ueys ssa 198.e]

9'vE [arad T°LS L'TE 9°9¢ 6T0Zm
LIy €LT £'8¢ 9'9g 8°0€ T've 8°LE T'EE 6'¢¢ 6°S¢ L'ET 6°'TE 810Cm
233d ‘ANON ‘PO 1dag “Sny Ang aunr Aepy jdy yaaep ‘qa4 ‘uer
0
(1] 8

s3uipieog 000‘00T 43d siulejdwo) Jawoisn)

o¢
0€
ov
0s

09

W3U5AS LIENEHL H3HY Tldtd

el




LET'L

€85°L

STY'y

T6L'T

TT6'E

S||ED PEOY "12d SI|lIN UelIN 6T0C &

8LE'Y

TvE’s

TL6'S

L8P

£€5's

8799

89.°9

65C'L

Iv1'9

5216

81801

TIS'Y

5||eD peoy "12g S3|lIN UBSA 8TOZ B

33Q

‘AON

D0

dag

‘8ny

Alnr

aunr

Aen

[dy

ST

‘g4

"uer

000°Z

000'Y

0009

0008

000°0T

s||eD peoy uaamiag SajiAl UeaAl

000°eT

(21545 S5 2! Telidkd

ol4]




Capital Area Transit System

Page 1
Statement of Operating Budget vs. Actual g
For the Period Ended May, 2019
Current Month Year to Date
2019 Approved
Budget Actual Var. Amount Budget Actual Var. Amount Annual Budget
Operating Expenses
Labor $907,132 $911,098 {$3,966) 54,535,660 $3,896,926 $638,734 $10,885,584
Fringe Benefits §$540,182 $558,601 ($18.419) $2,700,908 $2,672,372 $28.,536 $6,482,179
Total Labor and Fringe Benefits $1,447,314 51,469,699 {$22,385) $7,236,568 $6,569,297 $667,270 $17,367,763
Casualty and Liability $140,540 $151,169 {$10,629) $702,699 $581,563 $121,136 31,686,478
Services $149,226 $303,021 ($153,796) $746,129 $1,024,636 ($278,507) $1,790,709
Purchased Transportation $187,500 30 $187,500 $937.500 $995,583 ($58,083) $2,250,000
Materials & Supplies $227,770 $504,837 {$277,068) $1,138,849 $1,710,186 ($571,337) $2,733,238
Utilities $22.667 $14,403 38,264 $113,333 $71,625 $41,709 $272.,060
Miscellaneous Expenses $61,650 $78,319 (516,669) $308,250 $462,757 {$154,507) $739, 749
Leases and Rentals $13,333 $7,344 $5,990 366,667 $33,209 $33,458 $160,600
Total Cperating Expenses $2,249,999 $2,528,792 ($278,793) $11,249,995 | $11,448,850 {$198,802) $26,999,987
Operating Revenues
Passenger Paid Fares $141,803 $141,393 ($410) $709,013 $714.617 $5,604 $1,701,630
Special Transit Fares (Contract) $25,643 $11,760 ($14,184) $129,71¢6 $101.456 ($28,260) $311,319
ADA/Paratransit Revenue $7.667 $19,725 $12,058 $38,333 $28,820 ($9.513) $92.000
Advertising Revenue $61,054 $63,197 §2,143 $305,270 $278.704 ($26,566) $732,647
Interest Income $13,515 $18,852 $5,337 $67,576 $97,024 $29.448 $162,183
Other Agency Revenue $14.947 $1,252 ($13,695) $74,736 $88.909 $14,263 $179,346
Total Operating Revenues $264,929 $256,179 ($8,730} $1,324,644 $1,309,620 ($15,024) $3,179,145
Operating Shortfall/Subsidy Required | (51,985,070)[  (82272,613)]  s270,043 | | (s9,925351)] (510,139,237 S183,838 | (523,820,842)]
Fodoralr, State & Locart Subsrares)
Non Federal Revenue
Hotel/Motel Tax $104,235 $253,922 $149,687 $521,176 $918,200 $397,024 $1,250,823
Parish Transportation Fund $45,833 $0 {$45.833) $229,167 $137.500 ($91,687) $550,000
Property Tax Revenue $1,467,373 $1,467.373 30 $7.336,863 $7,336,863 §0 $17,608,470
Total Non Federal Subsidies 51,617,441 $1,721,295 $103,854 58,087,205 $8,392,563 $305,358 $19,409,293
Federal Operating Subsidics
FTA - Preventive Maintenance $348,879 $2,907,950.60 $2,559,071 $1,744,395 $2,907,950 $1,163,555 $4,186,549
FTA - Planning $18,750 %0 ($18,750) $93,750 $0 (%93,750) $225,000
Total Federal Subsidies $367,629 $2,907,950 $2,540,321 $1,838,145 $2,907,950 $1,069,805 $4,411,549
Total Operating Subsidies $1,983,070 $4,629,245 $2,644,175 $9.925,351 | $11,300,513 $1,375,162 $23,820,842
Net Operations Balanece +/- $0 $2,356,632 50| $1,161.276 $0




Capital Area Transit System

Balance Sheet

May, 2019
5/31/2019 5/31/2018
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 9,447,934 7,676,143
Accounts Receivable 694,378 431,490
Property Tax Receivable 17,300,802 17,291,859
Due from Governments 2,944,175 599,861
Notes Recejvable 0 0
Interest and Dividends Receivable 0 0
Inventory 205,970 546,555
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 36,570 359,146
Total Current Assets: 30,629,829 26,905,055
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 695,900 694,618
Total Restricted Assets: 695,900 694,618
Investments 0 0
Net Pension Asset, Long-Term 1,466,268 490,522
Equipment, Net 24,901,972 | 20,414,218
Total Assets 57,693,969 | 48,504,413
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 4,124,519 1,168,463
Accrued Payroll and Tax Liabilities 301,446 (640,480
Accrued Interest (Bus Lease) {0) (0
Note Payable 0 0
Accrued Compensated Absences 424,440 142,274
Claims Pavable and Related Liabilities 855,488 883,056
Capital Lease Payable 565,026 (328,137)
Deferred Revenue (Grants/Prop Tax) {0} 7,904,558
Other Current Liabilities 0 0
Total Current Liabilities 6,270,918 9,129,734
Long-Term Liabilities
Note Payable, Less Current Portion 0 0
Accrued Compensated Absences, Less Current Portion 0 266,320
Capital Lease Payable, Less Current Portion 2,788,983 3,938,590
Estimated Liabilities 3,249,053 1,192,231
Total Long-Term Liabilities 6,038,036 5,397,141
Total Liabilities 12,308,954 | 14,526,875
Net Assets:
Investments in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 21,547,964 16,803,765
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unrestricted 23,837,051 17,173,772
Total Net Assets: 45,385,015 | 33,977,537
Total Liabilities And Net Assets 57,693,969 48,504,413




CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

FINANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
JUNE 13, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard

MINUTES

The Finance and Executive Committee met on Thursday, June 13, 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were members Mark Bellue, Jim Brandt, Kahli
Cohran, and Antoinette Pierre. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell Brown,
Dwana Williams, Creighton Abadie, and members of CATS staff.
I Call to order and establishment of quorum

Mr. Bellue welcomed those assembled.
Il. President’s Announcements

Mr. Bellue noted that he had no announcements.

Il. Safety Moment

Ms. Simpson shared a safety moment that centered on accident-free
driving and CATS operators. She noted that June is National Safety Month
and that she would be sharing the names of 43 CATS operators who had
zero preventable accidents for the last twelve months at the June board

meeting.
IV. Executive Report and Financials

Mr. Deville asked that Mr. Bryan Jones be allowed to provide an update on
the BRT project and the next steps.

Mr. Jones noted that the redefinition study conducted by HNTB on behalf of
CATS and the City-Parish is complete and the project is transitioning from



a Small Starts Grant to a BUILD Grant application. It has been determined
that the BUILD grant offers the best opportunity at a successful grant
-award. The grant application is due July 15t and CATS has contracted
directly with HNTB to complete the application process.

Mr. Bellue moved to amend the agenda to take the BRT Corridor Project
action item out of order and Mr. Cohran seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue
invited public comment and there was none. The motion passed
unanimously with no abstentions.

Recommend authorization for cost expenditures associated with NEPA
completion and fifteen per cent (15%) design for Plank-Nicholson BRT
Corridor Project

It was noted by both Mr. Jones and CATS staff that the Plank Road Phase
One BRT project is on hold until such time that the NEPA process is
completed as well as 15% design. it is more efficient in both time and cost
to have the NEPA process conducted on the entire Plank-Nicholson BRT
corridor at one time rather than splitting the project in two.

Mr. Jones let the committee members know that the approximate remaining
total to complete the NEPA and 15% design is $429,000. There was
considerable discussion regarding the cost share between the City-Parish
and CATS:; it was noted that the previous Cooperative Endeavor Agreement
" called for an even cost share for the redefinition study.

It was noted that the City-Parish has money for transit related activity, but it
is not currently known if that amount is $150,000 or $200,000. These funds
would be used for the NEPA process. Mr. Jones let the members know that
up to 70% of funds could be reimbursable by the BUIILD grant, should that
application be successful.

Mr. Jones shared that the City-Parish will introduce a similar item being
considered by the CATS Board of Commissioners at the Metropolitan
Council meeting scheduled for June 26'"; a public hearing and vote will
occur at their July meeting.

There was discussion of the timing of the start of the Plank Road BRT
Phase One project and CATS staff noted it would be spring or summer
2020.There was discussion of the electric buses and their potential usage
prior to the start of BRT revenue service. Mr. Deville let the members know
that the FTA prohibits the use of the buses for regular fixed-route service
as they were purchased with a BRT-specific grant. However, he feels he
can obtain an exception to be able to use them on fixed-route.




Vi.

VIL.

It was requested by the committee members present that CATS and the
City-Parish enter into an agreement to codify the roles, responsibilities,
and obligations for the remainder of the BRT Corridor project.

Mr. Cohran moved that the full board authorize the CEO to expend $229,000
for cost expenditures associated with NEPA completion and fifteen per cent
(15%]) design for Plank-Nicholson BRT Corridor project and Mr. Brandt
seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there was
none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Continuation of Executive Report and Financials

Mr. Fight shared that the agency hosted its Behind the Wheel job fair on
June 4'" at the Automotive Campus of BRCC. More than 250 job seekers
attended the event and more than 196 were interviewed by CATS staff on
hand for the event. To this point, 29 offers have been extended and the
following have been conditionally accepted (pending pre-employment
screening): 19 in operations, five in maintenance, three in customer care,
and one custodian.

Mr. Bellue noted that some of the board members had to leave early and
therefore moved that the agenda be amended to take the remaining action
item out of order. Mr. Brandt seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public
comment and there was none. The motion passed unanimously with no
abstentions.

Recommend approval of contract for design services for transit amenities

Mr. Brown shared that the agency solicited qualifications for transit
amenities design. The RFQ was sent to 98 architectural & engineering
firms, including 27 small business and DBE firms. The agency received six
proposals in response to the RFQ.

The Proposal Evaluation Committee was comprised of both CATS staff and
external stakeholders, and they reviewed all the submissions.

Mr. James Baker shared that the selected firm will be responsible for the
design of the custom shelters that will be located throughout the system at
BRT stops and high-profile locations, information kiosks, BRT signage, and
on-time displays.

The recommended firm is Reich Landscape Architects. They are a local
firm that comes with a lofty reputation.

The work is not expected to exceed $180,000.




VIILI.

Mr. Brandt moved that the full board recommend authorization for the CEO
to enter into a contract with Reich Landscape Architects for design
services for transit amenities in an amount not to exceed $180,000 and Mr.
Bellue seconded the motion. Mr. Bellue invited public comment and there
was none. The motion passed unanimously with no abstentions.

Continuation of Executive Report and Financials

Ms. Dwana Williams updated the committee on the performance measures,
She let the members know that there are currently 127 active operators.

She noted that CATS had 213,627 passenger trips in May and the
percentage of on-time trips was 63.91%. Ms. Williams shared that there
were 498 cancelled trips in May and there were 34.6 complaints per 100,000
boardings. There was 1 preventable accident in May and there were 7,237
mean miles between road calls.

Mr. Deville let the board know that ETC Institute will be onsite beginning
June 17" for customer satisfaction surveys.

Mr. Deville shared that Will Scott & Company developed profiles on 26
candidates for the Deputy CEO position. Four candidates were offered an
interview and two accepted the invitation and were interviewed. Of the
remaining two, one accepted an offer at another property and one removed
himself from consideration due to iliness. Mr. Deville noted a decision as to
the next steps would be made in the next week to ten days.

The CEO was invited by the BREC Superintendent to meet and discuss
how CATS and BREC can collaborate. The MPO Transportation Policy
Committee met on June 12" and the CATS Five Year Program of Projects
(POP) was on the agenda for approval,

Mr. Rose noted that members of CATS staff attended an FTA workshop for
the triennial review. Planning has submitted a Bus and Bus Facilities grant
award application for four electric trolleys and six electric buses.

Mr. Deville shared that construction continues at the Cortana-Walmart
Transit Center and the passenger loading area is also proceeding.

Mr. Deville shared the financials with the committee and noted that the total
current liabilities were $6,270,918. The total long-term liabilities were
$6,038,036 and the total liabilities and net assets were $57,693,969.

The total operating expenses for May were $2,528,792 and the total
operating revenues were $256,179. The total operating subsidies were
$4,629,245 and there was a net operations balance of $2,356,632.




There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
June 12, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES

The Audit Committee met on Tuesday, June 12, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. Present at the meeting
were members Kahli Cohran, Jim Brandt, and Kevin O’Gorman. Also present were Bill Deville,
Rhonda Williams, CATS staff, and Tiffani Dorsa and Steve Bearry of Postlethwaite & Netterville.

Discuss audit report from Postlethwaite & Netterville
Mr. Cohran welcomed those assembled and asked Ms. Dorsa to begin the audit review.

Ms. Dorsa thanked the CATS staff for their hard work on the annual audit and let the
members know that Postlethwaite & Netterville (P&N) issued an unmodified opinion.

Ms. Dorsa shared that the system’s net position was $31,976,567, as of December 31,
2018, representing a decrease of $2,526,219, or 7.3% from that of December 31, 2017.
The net position at December 31, 2017 was $34,502,786.

It was noted that the total assets for 2018 were $45,392,785. The current liabilities were
$6,371,100 in accounts payable and accrued expenses and the total current liabilities
were $8,232,461. The claims payable and related liabilities, less current portion were
$2,824,535, primarily due to the agency being self-insured and Workers’ Compensation

claims.

The total operating revenue for 2018 was $2,808,645 and the total direct operating
expenses were $31,886,791. The federal operating subsidy was $3,175,696, a decrease
from 2017 that is primarily related to the government shutdown in 2018. The capital
contributions were $3,101,429 and the income loss after capital contributions was
$2,526,219.

The pension system has its own budget that is audited by P&N as well as performing
the CATS audit. The total assets for the pension system were $12,538,364. The employer
contributions were $720,360 and the employee contributions were $604,736.The change
in net position for 2018 was $479,305.



There was an adjustment to the prior year audit. The amount previously reported was
$25,413,004 in total non-operating revenues (expenses); the adjustment was $891,407.
The amount as restated is $26,304,411. The total net position, December 31, 2017 as .
previously stated was $33,611,379; the adjustment was $891,407. The total net position
amount as restated is $34,502,786.

Ms. Dorsa shared the financial statements findings with the committee members. She
noted there nine for the 2018 audit and one remaining from the 2017 audit that was still
unresolved.

The first finding was the condition of books and records. P&N assisted management in
drafting the year-end financial statements, related note disclosures, and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards required for the year-end financial reporting and the
recording of the transactions to recongcile certain asset and liability accounts at year-
end as a result of a lack of supporting schedules and reconciliations.

The cause was an accounting system conversion in January 2018 and turnover in
several key positions that resulted in the above stated condition. The effect was the
system did not reconcile cash, inventory, prepaid expenses, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, compensated absences, and salaries/benefits payable to supporting
documents throughout the year. The lack of reconciliation caused the balance sheet to
be materially misstated. Adjustments had to be provided to the system after year end in
order to properly state the account balances. Management and the Board of
Commissioners cannot properly oversee the financial condition of the system without
proper financial reporting.

The next finding was general Iedger accounts were not reconciled to bank account
statements for a significant portion of the fiscal year.

The cause was an accounting system conversion in January 2018 and turnover in
several key positions that resulted in the general ledger cash accounts not being
reconciled on a timely basis. The effect was that without this task being performed
regularly, accounting records may be inaccurate and improper activity may not be
detected.

The next finding was inventory reconciliations. The general ledger accounts were not
reconciled to inventory subsidiary records during the fiscal year.

The cause was an accounting system conversion in January 2018 and turnover in
several key positions that resulted in the general ledger inventory accounts not being
reconciled on a timely basis. The effect was that without this task being performed
regularly, accounting records may be inaccurate and improper activity may not be
detected.

The next finding was pension plan census data. P&N noted 22 employees who were not
enrolled in a timely basis in the defined benefit pension plan. Additionally, methods for
tracking changes in census data demographics and a process of reporting the plan
administrator was not adequately established.

The cause was turnover in key personnel in the human resources department, the lack
of established written procedures, and the lack of proper training of personnel that
resulted in inaccurate census data. The effect was that employees were required to take
up past contributions to the defined benefit pension plan which resulted in additional




recordkeeping error and a significant amount of time was required to review and verify
the census data by the plan administrator.

The next finding was recordkeeping associated with employee leave. P&N noted 25
employees who were allowed to take more than their accrued leave time available
resulting in 159 hours of time taken but not yet earned or approximately $2,800.
Additionally, accurate and complete reporting in not maintained to document the
accrued leave.

The cause was turnover in key personnel in the human resources department and lack
of proper training of personnel that resulted in accurate documentation not being
maintained of any employee’s leave liability. The effect was that without this task being
performed, employees are allowed to take more than their allotted leave time available
and the liability associated with this benefit in not being accurately reflected in the
financial reports of the system.

The next finding was billing of self-generate revenues. The system did not timely bill
customers for services provided during the year.

The cause was the turnover in the finance department and the accounting software
conversion in January 2018 that resulted in customer billing not occurring until
December of 2018. The effect was that without this task being performed, there is not
timely collection of revenue earned or accurate financial reporting maintained.

- The next finding was documentation of approved pay rates in payroll file. This is a
repeat finding from the prior year. During testing of internal controls over payroll, P&N
noted for 15 out of 40 individuals selected for testing, pay rates did not agree to the
supporting documentation in their file of the current rate of pay although it appeared
the increased pay rates were just an annual cost of living adjustment. In addition, P&N
noted for 16 out of 40 individuals tested no documentatlon existed for the approval of
the current rate of pay.

The cause was turnover in key personnel in the human resources and finance
departments and the lack of written policies and procedures that resulted in the lack of
documentation in payroll files. The effect was that the system does not have the
documentation to support wages being paid to all employees to determine they were
appropriately approved and in accordance with all union contracted terms.

The next finding was related to findings and questions costs for federal awards,
specifically the New Freedom Grant and the Federal Transit Formula Grant. The costs
charged to the New Freedom Grant and reimbursed by the Federal Government were
also included in the population of costs used to determine amounts to be drawn down
for preventative maintenance costs under the Federal Transit Formula Grant. Since the
system incurred significantly more eligible costs over the grant period than what was
reimbursed by the Federal Government under both grant awards, there are no
questions costs.

The cause was the current system of internal control established over grant draw-
downs is not properly designed to ensure all grants are considered and appropriately
removed from the total costs used in analyzing the eligible costs as part of the
reimbursements/draw down of federal assistance on the Federal Transit Formula Grant.
The effect was that the system may be reimbursed or drawn down funding for which
they may not be entitled. ‘




The next finding was related to findings and questioned costs for federal awards,
specifically suspension and debarment. While testing compliance with the Federal
program criteria regarding suspension and debarment, out of a population of 21
vendors, three were sampled and haphazardly selected for testing, P&N was unable to
obtain documentation to support that the system verified that one of these vendors
were not suspended, debarred, or otherwise excluded from doing business on federally
funded contracts. However, based on a search on sam.gov this vendor was not
identified as being debarred from federal programs.

The cause was that the system was not aware that payments made to this vendor were
being funded through reimbursement of federal awards. The effect was that without
verification and documentation of the procedures over these requirements, inadvertent
payments to vendors who are not allowed to contract with the federal government may
occur.

Ms. Dorsa reviewed the management letter and noted that while there were not
significant findings, there were a number of matters submitted for consideration.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted that written procedures and policies
over federal procurement regulations contained references to specific dollar amounts
used in determining which methods of procurement are allowed. Those thresholds have
increased and the policy is no longer accurate. In addition, certain policies did not
contain the required level of detail or elements expected for best practices as
recommended by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor or were never adopted by the Board
of Commissioners and remained in draft form.

The recommendation is that the system reviews its policies and procedures to ensure
they are updated to reference applicable regulations rather than referring to specific
dollar amounts, contain the necessary detail for employees to understand how to
address key transactions to the organization and are adopted timely.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted the system maintains 13 cash
accounts. While the number of accounts to be maintained can vary depending on the
needs of the organization and for compliance with laws and regulaticns, maintaining
too many accounts can result in inefficiencies and the opportunity for improprieties to
occur and not be detected timely.

The recommendation is that the system reviews its cash accounts to ensure that only
the accounts necessary for the efficient operation of the system and to comply with
laws and regulations.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted the system maintains bus shelters on
its depreciation listing that contain general descriptions and appear to encompass
more than one asset. The majority of these assets are fully depreciated. Maintenance of
capital asset records in an appropriate level of detail is required to property identify
individual assets and their location.

The recommendation is that the system reviews it capital asset records to remove any
bus shelters which are no longer property of the system and see to identify the location
of each of the assets in order to determine if they remain in service.




During the performance of the audit, P&N noted the system did not comply with the
reporting requirements under the terms of the conditions of a capital lease agreement
with a financial institution. This could result in modifications to the debt terms ore
requiring the debt to be paid in full on demand of the financial institution.

The recommendation is that the system reviews the terms of its agreement with the
financial institution and immediately comply with any reporting guidelines and
establish appropriate internal controls to ensure future reporting is done on a timely
basis.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted that due to turnover during the fiscal
year, duties are not assigned to team members in the finance department in the most
efficient and effective manner.

The recommendation is that the system reviews its division of duties within the finance
department and assigns job functions in order that the department may function in the
most efficient manner.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted that user access for one terminated
employee was not removed in a timely manner. In addition, it was noted that no formal
process is in place for there to be user access reviews performed on a regular basis.

The recommendation is that procedures be implemented to ensure that user access
rights are removed for all employees on a timely basis. Additionally, it is reccommended
that a formal process be implemented for user access reviews to be performed on a
timely basis.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted that the purchase of ADA compliant
vans was procured under the state contract, a method allowed under state law. While
the system must use its own documented procurement procedures which reflect
applicable state laws and regulations, they must ensure the method of procurement
conforms to applicable federal law and the procurement standards under Uniform
Guidance.

The recommendation is that the system review the procedures used by the Louisiana
Office of State Procurement and document whether they believe those procedures are
appropriate to comply with federal regulations.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted that fifteen employees are provided
with car allowance benefits of approximately $300 per month each. While this benefit
may be appropriate for certain employees given the personal use of their vehicles for
business purposes, the allowances should be reviewed to ensure that all personnel
receiving this benefit are traveling in miles in excess of the cost-benefit of a per mileage
reimbursement.

The recommendation is that the policies and procedures related to car allowance
benefits be reviewed to ensure that the benefit is provided only to those employees for
whom it is cost-effective and is needed for a business purpose.

During the performance of the audit, P&N noted that the system entered into several
short-term debt agreements for the financing of insurance premiums which did not
have the appropriate language to exempt them financing from approval by the
Louisiana State Bond Commission.




The recommendation is that the policies and procedures be implemented to ensure that
all financing agreements are approved by the finance department prior to their
execution and that appropriate fanguage is included in the financing agreement or
proper approval must be obtained from the Louisiana State Bond Commission prior to

the execution of the agreements.

There was discussion regarding the cost of the audit. It was noted that CATS engaged
P&N to reconcile bank statements for an additional cost of $20,000 and that the audit
was approximately $94,000 or double the original cost.

There was discussion of the board reserve account that originally contained $3 million.
It was noted that there is $400,000 remaining in the account.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE

PLANNING COMMITTEE

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
June 7, 2019
10:45 a.m.

5700 Florida Boulevard,
Ninth Floor Conference Room
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806

MINUTES

The Planning Committee met on Friday, June 7, 2019, at 10:30 a.m. Present at the
meeting were members Kevin O’Gorman, Mark Bellue, Kahli Cohran, and Laurence
Lambert. Also present were Bill Deville, Darrell Brown, members of CATS staff, Bryan
Jones of HNTB, and members of the public.

BRT update and next steps

Mr. Bryan Jones noted that the redefinition study has been completed by HNTB
and has been submitted to both CATS and the City-Parish.

Mr. Jones shared that there has been a shift from the Small Starts Grant to a
BUILD (Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development) grant application.
The grant application is due July 15" and is being done by HNTB, who has been
contracted by CATS to complete the grant process.

It was noted that the NEPA (National Environmental Policy Act) process is the
next step in the BRT project. This must be completed and environmental
clearance must be obtained before either the Plank Road Phase One or Plank-
Nicholson Phase Two projects can continue.

There was discussion that the Plank Road Phase One project can move forward
once NEPA is complete, regardless of the status of the BUILD grant. It is
believed that the NEPA process can be concluded in the next 60 to 90 days.

It was noted that the conceptual level design is finished for Plank Road Phase
One. The project is on hold until the conclusion of the NEPA process.

There was discussion of the cost of the next phase of the BRT process. It was
noted that the cost share for CATS and the City-Parish is $474,779. Of the total,



approximately $48,000 has been paid by CATS to HNTB to complete the BUILD
application, leaving a remainder of approximately $420,000 to be shared by
CATS and the City-Parish. Mr. Deville noted that CATS has grant funding
secured to pay for the CATS portion.

There was discussion that the two parties have previously split a cost of
$440,000 equally to have the redefinition study performed by HNTB.

There was discussion that the City-Parish and CATS need to update their
agreement to reflect the new cost share as well as the funding breakdown for
the future of the project. This discussion also included questions regarding the
responsible party for various tasks associated with the project.

It was agreed that Mr. Deville would contact DPW Transportation and Drainage
Director Fred Raiford to schedule a meeting to finalize some of the remaining
details regarding cost share allocation and responsibility delineation.

On-call services solicitation update

Mr. Darrell Brown let the committee know that CATS staff has received eleven
proposals in response to the solicitation for on-call services. He noted that the
Project Manager will be identifying both interhal and external individuals to
comprise the Proposal Evaluation Committee (PEC).

Staff has determined that it is in the agency’s best interest to award a “bench” of
prospective firms. These firms will be utilized if and when CATS needs to secure
their services for tasks identified in the solicitation.

Mr. Brown shared that there will only be contract items brought to the Board
when services are required, and they will be brought individually as needed.

There was discussion surrounding the process and it was noted that there has
not been a final determination made as to the number of firms that will be
selected for the bench. Additionally, the PEC will vary based on the agency’s
need. There was discussion concerning the criteria, scoring, and evaluation of
the firms for the various projects.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




CHTS

CAPITAL BRER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

MEETING OF THE
504/COMMUNITY RELATIONS COMMITTEE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM AND
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION COMMISSIONS
JUNE 12, 2019
Ninth Floor Conference Room
5700 Florida Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA

MINUTES

The 504/Community Relations Committee met on Wednesday, June 12, 2019, at 10:30
a.m. Present at the meeting were Linda Perkins, Antoinette Pierre, Bill Deville, Dwana
Williams, Karen Denman, Mr. Terrance Durousseau, members of CATS staff, and Bryan

Basford of MV Transportation.

Introduction

Ms. Perkins welcomed those assembled and thanked them for coming.

MV Transportation Report —

Mr. Basford of MV Transportation noted that CATS On Demand had 8,656
scheduled trips in May. Of the scheduled trips, 7,562 were completed; 615 were
cancellations and 479 were no-shows. It was noted that the implementation of
the Trapeze software meant that there was a more accurate reflection of
cancelled trips and no-shows.

Mr. Basford noted that 52% of the trips were subscription and 48% were demand
trips.

Mr. Basford shared that there were 2 complaints for the month that were service
related.

Mr. Basford noted that the on-time performance for the month was 86.9%.

It was noted that there were zero road calls for the month, but this is a result of
vehicles being down long-term due to warranty issues. The lifts are not working
on several of the vans and they are at the dealership so as not to affect the
warranty of the vehicles.



iv.

Ms. Perkins commended Mr. Basford and his staff for their diligence in turning
the trends over the last twelve months. She noted their hard work is apparent in
the performance measures.

Mr. Basford let the committee know that MV had 96,000 total riders in the last
twelve months and 23,000 of those had wheelchairs or other mobility devices.

Certifications — Karen Denman

Ms. Denman shared the certification numbers for May for CATS On Demand. She
noted that there were 31 customers certified in May. There were five temporary
certifications and two were deemed ineligible during the month. ;

Ms. Denman noted there were eight recertifications in May.
Customer service — Angella Wynn and Dwana Williams

Ms. Wynn noted there were 74 total complaints received in May. There were 27
that required corrective action and there were also six commendations for the

month.

Ms. Wynn shared there were eight complaints for being passed up, one for
courtesy, and 18 for performance.

Ms. Wynn let the committee know that, in May, the Customer Care Department
fielded an average of 1,227 calls daily and customers were on hold an average of

26 seconds. -
Discussion of operator training — Dwana Williams

Ms. Williams shared that the Operations Department gets on complaints as soon
as they are received.

it was noted there would be a mandatory meeting the following day to discuss .
customer service with the Customer Care representatives.

It was noted that the Operations Department will have SWTA onsite June 18"
and 19" for customer service training.

There is still ongoing training for operators who have infractions.

Mr. Jim Fight gave an overview of the Behind the Wheel job fair that was held
June 4'". He noted that more than 250 job seekers attended the fair and more
than 196 individuals were interviewed by CATS staff. As of this meeting, 23
offers of employment had been extended: 18 for operations, five for
maintenance, four for maintenance, six for customer care, and two for facilities.

Once offers have been accepted and they complete the pre-employment
screening, the goal is to have a training class for operations begin on June 24",




Mr. Theo Richards shared an overview of the paratransit on-demand/ride share

options for CATS On Demand customers. There is an opportunity for CATS and
MV to pilot a program that mirrors one happening in Dallas at the DART system.
Several members of CATS staff will take a trip to Dallas in the near future to see
how the system works, what is working well, etc.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned.




6T-Aely

%086

puUBLIS %

6T-1dy 6T-1EN

uonduosgns 9% m

%0

%0T
%0T
%0E
%0%
%0S
%09
%0L
%08

%00T

[BO0) e | ()

6T-9=4 6T-uer 8T-220 8T-nON 810

g1-des

[BOD mmme  Hicl ], I

8T-3ny

|T-Inf

%408 Ainnonpoad (Hdd) 1noH 424 sia8uassed

gT-uny

(dLO) @8ejuadiad awil uQ

%086

%0'SL

%0708

%058

%006

%056

%0°00T



80€ 182 ote 2ee (12 ove 662

09 285 859 179 v9 079 £59
[£19 €901 TeSL | €999 TeOL TviL 169
s 96, 6be8  YIEL SELL 968 0952
6T 61-924 6T-uer 81280 gT-AON 81190 gT-uny
ST-1eN 61-G94 6T-uer 81920 8T-MON 8T-190 gT-unp

0954

MOUS ON B
SUOIE||3UR) JaqUINN |
sdii] paie|dwod m
sdul painpaysm

0001

000z

acoe

000w

000s

0009

0004

0008

0006

0000T



sjutejdwo) # s|ied peoy #

SdIeYI[B3YM [BIOL = sJ3pIY [BIO| W

6T-AeN 6T-dy 6T-1en 6T-994 6T-uer 81-28q 8T-AON BT-120 g1-dag g1-8ny 8T-INT 8T-unr

_I_I_
IR

-

.

9803

. I _: “_rul_ | . R
1 ™ (W

0oot

il

000t
Qoog
000t

0008

0009

0002

rd4 74 LTIEL
T98L 0S8L 9908 564 6L6L
8 LLVB 0618 0006

TS¢6

0008

00007



v

MV Transportation, Inc

Service Review
June 2018-May 2019

CHTS

EEEEE AL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

& | ON DEMAND

Scheduled Trips 95,676
Completed Trips 86,473
Completion Percentage 90.38%
Total No-Shows 3,479
No-Show Percentage 3.64%
Average No-Show 290
Total Riders 96,065

Total Mobility/Wheelchair 23,000
Mobility Percentage 23.94%
Service Miles 816,045

Service Hours 54,551

On-Time Percentage 89.2%
Average Complaints 9
Average Road Calls 4




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

June 6, 2019
MEMORANDUM
To: William “Bill” Deville, CEO
From: Lisa M. Sanchez, CATS Procurement Manager

James Baker, Project Manager

Subject: CATS Procurement Process and Proposal Evaluation
Summary Report
Recommendation Contract Award
Solicitation #2019-AmenitiesDesign-005

Purpose:
This document summarizes the procurement process and documents reasons

to recommend an award of a Contract for CATS to secure the referenced
Design Services for Transit Amenities.

Background:
The purpose of the RFQ is to secure a contract for a firm to handle

Architectural & Engineering (“A&E”) Design Services for Transit Amenities in
connection with CATS infrastructure improvements utilizing the “Brooks”
Method and complying with applicable law. The proposed A&E Services are
intended to complement and support CATS planned BRT services along Plank
Road, Florida Blvd., Nicholson Drive and other locations. The amenities will
include, but are not limited to, transit shelters (distinctive, iconic design),
information kiosks and display monitors, information signage and other items
as deemed appropriate in order to ensure greater efficiency, comfort,
convenience and overall safety.

Procurement Processes:

The RFQ was advertised in The Advocate (official journal) and in the Weekly
Press (DBE Publication) on March 28 and April 4, 2019. The RFQ was also
emailed directly to 98 Architectural & Engineering firms, including 27 small
businesses and DBE firms. CATS received 1 question during the open inquiry
period which was answered via an Addendum to the RFQ on April 10, 2019.
On April 17, 2019, CATS received proposals in response to the RFQ from the
following firms: (1) Reich Landscape Architects, (2) WHLC Architects, (3)
RHH Architects, (4) Stuart Consulting, (5) Modus Architects and (6)
GOTECH.

Proposal Evaluation Committee Member Selection:

The Proposal Evaluation Committee (PEC) was comprised of five (5) members.
The members were selected by the CATS Project Manager as qualified to
serve on the evaluation committee based on their background and/or expertise.




2250 Florida Boulevard

Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE:

225.389.8920

breats.com

CATS

CAPITAL AREA TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

CATS Procurement Department concurred with the selection of the PEC

members.

Proposal Evaluation Committee (PEC) Review:

The CATS PEC members were advised to base their comments and scores
only on the criteria set forth in the RFQ.

See a summary of the PEC meeting and selection process below:

Dates

Summary of PEC Meetings and Selection Process

4/18/19
Delivery of
RFQ and
Proposals to
PEC
Members

5/2/19
Delivery of
PEC Packets
to PEC

CATS Procurement Department staff conducted a compliance
review of the six (6) proposals received and found them to meet
the requirements of the RFQ. All six were deemed to be
responsive proposals. On 4/18/19 the PEC members received copies
of the proposals. The members were instructed to thoroughly review the
best practices RFQ Evaluators Guide, the RFQ and the submitted
proposals prior to meeting as a group. In addition, they were instructed
to reflect their written comments along with their “preliminary draft”
scores using the criteria/categories reflected in the RFQ.

On 5/2/19 The CATS Evaluation Instruction Packets outlining the
procurement evaluation process were distributed to the PEC. The
packet included 1) CATS (best practices) RFQ Evaluators Guide; 2)
RFQ & addenda; 3) Confidentiality/No Conflict of Interest Certification;
and 4) Evaluation Criteria/Scoring & Comment form (one for each
proposal).

5/6/19
1st
PEC Meeting
Discussions
and Scoring

CATS Procurement staff served as facilitators during the PEC meeting
held on 5/16/19. The PEC members met as a group to discuss their
review comments for each of the proposals. General discussion
ensued about the pros and cons of each proposal received and how
well each met the requirements of the RFQ. After much deliberation,
the PEC members scored the proposals in each area of the Evaluation
Criteria (per the requirements outlined on Page 19 of the RFQ) and
submitted their scores to Procurement.

5/9/19
Discussions
and Final
Scoring

PEC Final Scoring: The Procurement Department shared the
reference information received on the 2 highest proposers and typed
the scoring “Consensus” for each proposer, then emailed those to the
PEC. Prior to making their final decisions, all PEC members were
advised to consider all factors (i.e., the proposals and their draft
preliminary scores and rankings). The scores were summarized by
CATS Procurement.




2250 Florida Boulevard
Baton Rouge, LA 70802

PHONE: 225.389.8920

brcats.com

CATS

CAPITAL ARER TRANSIT SYSTEM

Connecting you to what matters.

5/9/19
Discussions | The PEC Scores are reflected in the Table below.
and Final
S(gg;';? Ranking Proposing PEC
Order Firms Scores
/¥ Reich Landscape Architecture 94
2" WHLC Architecture 92.6
3" (tie) GOTECH 70.8
3" (tie) RHH Architects 70.8
5" Stuart Consulting 67.4
6" Modus 61.8
The PEC agreed to recommend negotiations with Reich Landscape
Architecture as the highest rated proposer. CATS Procurement
concurred with the PEC recommendation.
5/22/19 On 5/22/19, a letter of Intent to Recommend Award was sent from
Intent to Procurement to Reich Landscape Architecture, requesting they
Recommend | g bmit to CATS by May 30, 2019 their Final Cost Proposal, together
Award with a Complete list of tasks, sub-tasks & hourly rates, Overhead rates
for the past 3 years, Project Schedule and any additional or supporting
information.
5/30/19 On 5/30/19 the CATS Project Manager and Procurement Department

received the above requested documents and the Best and Final Offer
of $180,000 from Reich Landscape Architects. This amount was
determined to be fair and reasonable by the Project Manager. This
award recommendation will be presented to the F&E Committee in
June and then the Board at the June 18" meeting.

Proposal Evaluation Committee (PEC) Recommendation:

The entire procurement process was conducted in compliance with the Brooks
Act. CATS began negotiations with the highest rated and responsible proposer,
Reich Landscape Architecture. Their Best and Final Offer was considered
acceptable. The contract amount is not to exceed $180,000 (which is within
CATS current budget) for the term of the contract. Given the above, and
considering the RFQ, the Proposal and other related factors, awarding the
contract to Reich Landscape Architecture is in CATS best interest. CATS
Procurement Department concurs with this award recommendation and
presents this recommendation to the CATS Board of Commissioners for

approval.




¢———pieme juelb 12)e QgLs ,.m._E_....h.m.. o WGZPS RUNINY <—)EEYS S:9331dWo)

ubjsaq |eurd/wijaid ubisag %S| Apnis UOS|OYdIN
: uoljiuljspsy -jue|d
< VdaN

uoI3oNIISU0D

123lo.d

s -Qa
(¢20z Jswuwns) - | S_%m
RIS anuanay (6102 29Q) S
149 uosjoydIN-yue|d piemy juelg aiing
m ”, e | aseyd
JUBW(UIe) “, ol3an.isuo3 c.m_mmo_ / uc.w_c:m__m | yue|d
Buipun4 [e207 m _ N I
buipun{ Jajsuei| peoy (020z bunds) 1e1s (8107 I1e4)
(S3I2IUBA) 6EES 3NUIAA3Y 3DIAISS Yue|d parosdw| uibag
(43jsuel] yoN) spund 41S
juely giing

uol1euIpioo)

suljpwi] buipuny juels diing 10d Sn

3|npayas jenidalsuo) yadwdo|anaq 1d3loid — 14g a8noy uoleg



Sa0IAeS
upny [ewsix3
uojsuad
‘suondo |emauad Jeak-auc 8L/LE/CL 2 S1VD
Z Yim ‘0z0z ubnouus g0z ui Buipus siesj lepusie) Jo4 | Buipus joeRuod Bupsixe 8L/EL/LL sieak ¢ 1oenUOD SODIAID
‘81/0E/01 U0 pauado 44y "pleog (N} 0) aA0W 0} paroidde ue a2e|das 0} SaoIBS panoiddy 101 000'8VLS | 2IAISNSN B 5901MI9G . S
sajwwod 384 — g1/g8/LL parocidde pieog - gLIEL/LL UpNY [ewa)xg Joj d4y pleog LZ0z 98d | 6Lozuer | 1soD xolddy | syemyiepsod d4y npny
siiejjy @jelodlog pue ‘|| Jusisingoid ‘suoneiadg
‘Buisiyeapy  ®  Bunexiepy  ‘poddng  ulwpy  [eI1susD
‘DouBUl4 SB Yons ‘AlEsseteu Se 'S |yD J0) S80IAIRS J8YJ0
PUE JRY BpN|OUl O} SBOIAIBS ‘6L/EL/Z BNSYIM SLYD U0
pajsod pue painquisip 8q 0l DAY ~ 6L/8/Z "SBOIAIBS ([20-U0 600-589IAIS1[ED
IRV Uou o} I3 anssial 0] S1VO (8)1sgem S1vQ U0 pue | SB0JAISS [[BO-UD JRy-tiou -UO6L0Z
SIOPUBA 0} WS BIA) PB|IBOUBD SI DY — 6LIPLIE 6L/OLIS | 10} d4N BNSSIaL M S1YD ftHd
uo anp s|esodoid ‘wdg 18 61L/L /Y Uo i3y 8q o} 8ausiauco (pajjzauen) agl soojniag | S9RIMES JIED-UO
lesodoid-aid "S80IMSS [[ED-UQ 10} PANIOIOS dd¥ — 6L/8Z/E | SBOINISS ||ED-UQ 10} DY agl agal QgL 18509 xoiddy agl agy | S@JIAIBG JRY
'0}@ 'SBUIUDBW }8)21) pUB SYS0oD ‘Spie|jog Alales
‘Bunybll ‘ssjoeldaocal ysel) ‘syoel ayiq ‘Buness isbusssed
‘sanioe) Jebusssed pasojus ‘abuno| s aAUp ‘seimonas
Adoueo ‘sfeq Bupped sng aimes) |w sanioe; peuue|d L0EL# Hd
SUL "BUO ! JBJUBD YSUBI] MEN 2JoUM ‘SISIUSD IajSued) JajuaD Ysues | ssoMBS .;MMm:mF dan
sng Jofew ¢ jo saues e Jo Juswdojerap ay} eyedspun 0} | abBnoy uojeg YUoN ay) o) agl uBisaq JIAIBS
w4 juswabeue S1vD Jad awy SIY) 1. pioy U — 6LILY | S821A8S ublseq Jo) DAY as.l ag.l ag.l 1509 xoiddy agl Ekid ubiseq 39Y
‘'suofeayioads |BoIULDS)
s Buneaw u) Jappigq aalsuodsal 1semo| ay) Bujuiwiaiep u| Go0-uBisagsanuaLLy
SpIg UORONHSUOD U} YIM S 1D 1SISSE OS|E |[IM JUB)NSUOD 6102 DAY
ubilseg oje ‘sadeospueT  ‘sysoly ‘si@)eys  apnpul " :._mm_mw mm_m_mz
AN '6L/LLI Uo WweQQ:QL 1B anp sjesodold ‘pajolos Sem piemy !
D4y - 6L/82/€ '000'08L$ 40} Bugssw pieog §L0Z aunp Juswdinb3 pejejey enuo) SUBAMHING || s || o YAERL
aU) Je PJEME UE pUBLWLIODa) pue siesodoid psjen|eAs D3d | pue ssnusuwly JSUBl] o ancuddy 000'0814 2deospueT | igeag SaJIADg
puB ‘JusWainoold Aq panledal alam siesodold — GLILLY | Seoues uBisaq Jof DY 0} pieog agl agl 1509 xoiddy yoiay I8y ubisag 33V
'81/62/8 :3jeq Buiuadp |esodoid “elsgem Gl/#¥d 'pPAIg
S1vD uo psajsod ‘Is|| JOpUBA O] JUSS UOHBIUNOU pue Bld '® Py jue|d
pesianpe si DJY maN — g1/g/g “BuioBuo ||3s suogen|ea — SaN||Io.} JIsues mau (owgl) (owgl) sSuonels 1M9g
8L/0L/0L "9rS Wol GG yiG'ZzZeS JO JUNOWE BU3 Ul JaYo [BuUl | 3pNjdUl 0 'PAIg B4 B Py 8L/EL/LL agl as.t seoiiag S921AI9S
pani@dal S1vD — 8L/SZ/0L ‘PieOg [N} 0} anow 0} pasoidde | Mueld UO SUOHBIS | g J0) panoiddy ?1eq :|8leq 000'€ZES 211 uBisaq A
seliwwoy I94 — glL/g/LL panocidde pieog - gL/EL/LL | SeOIDS UBISEQ 40 DY pieog polewns3 | psjewnsy | 1sop xouddy | ‘dnoig grs 33v ubiseq 33V
02/62/2 Ny} [emaus) m_mcm_n_u_nww_v_%?
9L/LL/8 1oBeljuod Bupjeas (swieo dwon ] d fizipeiz Sl =ep pus
j0 [emaual panosdde pleog SIVD — 9L/0E/8 “Pazieul | suaxiop pue Aujiger] 193l mmo_..r_mw_ duwon 1a)Iopn
[eMOUBl JORIUOD — OL/6/6 [EMBUSI LOW 9 B Bq | ‘Suoneb)seAuj 'Seomias 02/62IZ STy, || MRS 8 Aunger
M 10e1U0D SIy} Jabeuel j08lold Jad — LL/1Z/L “Percidde wirero Jojsnipy 1o} yBnoayy ‘6L/82/T S B1/A% poud nog 19914 sng
394 — L1/0L/8 - panoiddy pieog — /1/GL/8 'paroidde | joequod Jeaf g jeuibLo) [emauay alep pus m_Emw_ 350,_,._ juswabeuep swie|)
384 — 8L/GLE "parcidde pieog - gL/0zZ/z teaA Buo 10} | 6L/8Z/Z — 8L/L/E 1O pouad aaoiddy aung BLILIE pajepdn swied e 2
panssi joeuU0) MaN — gL/L/E "Paroldde pieog — gL/SL/L |emaual paaoiddy pieog 0} pleog 0zZ/6e/e [emauay 0} 199y umoug 201AI98 13)sn ——ud
Y
SJUBWIWIOS / SBION | papiaoid , panoiddy ajeq ajeq Uiy aweN adA) uonduasag
jonpold /SadIAleg pleog pu3 uels JOpuUap juon =R ITVETS

Syjuow ¢ 03 | Uly)m uoloy pieog Buipuad sjoeloid = an|g

1_ mou [eaosddy pieog spaau / Wa)| UOIOY = MOj|BA

_

610z ‘gL aunp

pieog S1VD 10} mc__—w_J jusuwialndold S1VO




‘SUE}d JUSWISaAU|
juswanosdw| [epden

pue oiBajens S1YD Ul pauyep
se'saAnoalqo pue sjeob
‘suoljepuswiwiodal juawsajduw

0} JJBIS BARNDIXS pue juawabeuepy
OJD YHM yiom pue 'S1epipues
payiend e yym Asueoea Jolusg S1vVD
030 Aindag S1vD Buly yum ZGL61L0Z 0] J0SIApY
1SISSE ‘Sainp asueusjuiew
pue Bunesado Aep-o)-Aep O&:H%m_“EoU wco_um‘_mao
10 swabeuew pue Wbisianc UM louag g
. u1ysisse ‘uonduasap qol 6L/LZ/S (IvN) 2711 039 findeg
sasnpu| aby maN 00D MaU Jo JuawdojaAap Yyjim paaocidde ‘sauysnpuj ERIINETS
Yim JoBRIJUOD mau sy} panocadde pieog — 61/1Z/S S1VO ISISSE O} JUENNSUOD pieog BL/LE/ZL 6L/L/9 aby map 1INsuod) Bunoy
a
‘sisquis D34 a4yl Ag
pejosjes se paynisul D13 Buipuawiwiosss 03ID SIVD O . [EMBUSI BUO LM
13)}3| PJEME 10} UOIEPUBWILIODSI B} pasedaid Juswainosoly "I98 MBUBI 0} | §LZ‘zZES ppe |[EMaual 0z1'89% 6L/0€/ S S1Ep pug
sLISLIY '8L0Z ‘9L |udy uo joejuoo | panosdde UOEPUBWLWOIa) 0T 0} | PUE JoBR[UOD 1PBA4UOD (6107 w>m>._:w
pIEOg S1VD 'SPUny 810U J0j SYSE) [SUCHIPPR UM [BMaUS] 19)9  "GLE°C0LS 101500 |emaual 1eaf sup 10} [EMOUI O] LOI}ORJSIES
' . amsuj ! !
anoidde pue mainal O 394 6L/LLY SHSel peppe Jo) |B10] pamaual e Je ieak anoudde GLZ'ZES PPY) I aoinBg
Junowe [BUORIPPE/M [emaual pancidde pieog — 6L/9LIY B 80jM} $ASAINS pieog 0} pieog 0Z/0E/Y 6LILIS SLE'E0LE 213 lnsuog Jawoisng
malnay JyBisienQ 1oy 158'LYS malneay
@OUB}SISSY MBINSX-1S0d 1928102 Whisieng
‘Hoddng uonoy aAoaLoD | Od 1oBRUoD aAIsuayaldwo)
‘leroidde QI 104 PIOYSIL BL) UILIM '$YSe] apn|oul 0} L0Z NI o— V14 6L0ZA4)
SBM USIUM ‘/GR'/PS 101 GL/G/Z UO PaINJaxs SEM JOBIUGO [BluuBL] V14 Buiwoadn 6LILZIS P
. & ¥ i adue}sissy
[euBuQ "8L/0L/8 ‘BRE'PPLS JO JUNOWE JOBNUOD [EJO0} B 0 uonesedaid yim pasoidde z6b'06% ppy) | SOIEID0SSY s91088 E
104 Z61'96$ 40 Spuny |euonippe pancidde pieog — 6L/LZ/S | SLyD ISISSE 0) JUBYNSUOD pleog 61/LE/8 8LIvZ/ZL BYETFLS ® }op3ld ynsuop | @2Ueldwog
"J8u00s 1o SAep O Xau ay} ulujm
jno spiq sy} asey o) Buidoy ase app ‘Spunj [Elepa-
Buisn ‘sieysem snq z 10j ‘a)9|dwo9 jsowe ‘payelp
Buleq si g1| — 6L/8/z N0 pues pue azieuy o}
JusWaIN01d Joj pamainal Bulaq gy | Jo Yelp |eulyd — X
Sk i =5 e : SAUO MBL LM oi[dal
6/Z/v "wdg e 61/62/S @leq Buiuadp pig pajoljos pue E_c::u_o aA0LBY
mcf_ = QF\N\m .mr«m_‘\@ EQ Oo.ﬂ Ou mu_.ND mC_CQQO fo)] JopLay, "siaysem BLOZ/QL/L 9021 # Hd
pig pue (poas suonsenb aiow) pousd Aunbu snq (z) omy 4oy spig anoiddy SIBUSEM Sng
i B PUSI® 0] WNpUsppy panss! S1VD — 6L/8Z/S | Paiolos sey jusisinoold 0} pJeog 000'00F$ 153 asl ail uoponsuoy
‘610¢ "9 UdJdel\ "wdQ0:g
:@1e ong pig '1S1| JOpPUsA O} pajleWS pue alsqam o) "
gLl paysod S1vD — 61/9/2 "0 ‘dnoug uogonisuod 4 8_5._“
Kley ‘Jeppiqg 1samo| 0} pleme Buipuswwodsal : o
; - Z00-NDNSUBL | BUBLIOD-6LOZH# ay} jo f dd
S| puUe 'spiq ¢ paAlsdal SI1VD _umr_mn_0 spld — 61/9/€ gl — Jswag usuer | 6L0Z/61L/E aouenss| 2711 ‘dnoag 13jusd
‘panouddy 384 — 6L/FLIE "6L/LZ/E UO INO JUSS Od BUBLOD) JO UOHONISUOD anoiddy 1O SyoaM 000'525% uonoNIISU0Y jisuel) euepog
UM paadoid 0} 2joN ‘pancidde pieod — 61/6L/S 1o} g1 :aig3y 0} pieog £ UIYIA 1507 xoiddy Ay all uofjontisuo)
)
BPIAC aje E) awen adA uonduose
SJUBLLIWOY [ SBION papiaold m.o>o._n_j< e 1eq iy N L lonjauasa(
JONpPolid [SaJIAIRS pieog pug Hels 10puap Juon LTIV TS

SyjuowW ¢ 0} | UIYIM UolOY pieog Bulpued sjoeloid = enig

_ mou |[eacuddy pieog spaau | WA} UOIOY = MO|[BA

6L0Z ‘gL sunp

pieog S1v9 40} bunsiy jJuswainooid S1VI




1449
Py ue|d pue
1}9 BUBLIO)
10} sapiuawy
‘sutejunoy Bupjuup ‘spie|joq ‘ssjoejdsnal Jsuel ]
ysesy ‘suoneys Buibieys ‘susjueid  ‘syoel  ayig  se 1xg mm.__an_:w
yons ‘safiusWE Jays-syi-4o, apnjoul o} mou payesp Buieq | py MUBld Pue BUBLOD 000°'055% !
g1 - 6L/8/z Wawabeuely S1vD Jad POy UQ — 6L/Ly | IO} SBRIUSWE JBYS-BUIHO ag.l asL agal 1500 x01ddy agl il '8 S|eu9ie
)}
L/S
6102/61/2 Uo ‘Aidde EEomN‘mw.m\gEoo
pie0q S1Vv0 Aq panociddy 6L0Z/6L/Z sajes Aunoy + . saoIMBS S991A42
eak ise| woy sabueyd | joenuog ssomisg [ebe panciddy zzi8Lls BLBLIS | seqisumey | ONdV ‘WA | T o0 LA
ON 'JoBlu0d Jesh-¢ mau panoidde pieog — 6L/61/Z JeaA (g) sauy pleog (mau) (mau) Alpuop MmeT alpeqy | ynsuop |ebe
3
‘Aousby ayy
JO sjuawys!|dwoooe ay)
‘Sjemaual Jluow-aaam] () Jnoy | 9SEOMOYS pue ‘AJUniuuwod
0] dn 1oy uondo sy YIm ‘SyluoW Z| 1o} 000°SZ LS 40 Junowe 8y} ul puelqg aAnisod
8Y} U} 8q 0} LONEPUSLILIODAS PIEME JOBIUDD YJIM ‘80U210S | B UlRjUlBW PUB piiNg 'aseq
ooy st uly Buloos 1saybiy (D3d) 28niwwo uonenjeas diysiapu s1vyD asealoul
|lesodoid @yl Ag peleneas alem  youm  sjesodoud 0} suBisap pue saibsiens S92IAI9g
G panRosl SIVYD 'Ssald APPAM Byl PuB B1eD0APY Bunesew ‘pu ‘swelboud gL/8LI6 1eah Jad *
8yl ul pasiuanpe pue swJy ubisep oiydelb zg o) Juss Sem Buneyiew Buinoaxa pue parosddy wnwixey aJusIdg ubisaq
UOUEMDIOS d-Y UY - 8L/12/L "Parciddy pieod — gL/gL/6 Bunessn ul 51vD Isissy pleog 8L/0E/6 8L/L/OL 000'sZ1L$ o0y d4y olydels
)
“JOBNUOY [BMAUSY Bulpuawwooay Jsna 030D 995
"SLILE/E MUY LL/L/y Jo pousd |emBual Joj [eroiddy pieog
SPaaU J0BNUOD — LL/LZ/E "IOBAUCD JO [emaus) pascidde
pieog = LL/LZ/E 1PBHUOD |emeusy Buipuswiwoosy
Jleys 030 @9S  BL/LE/E NIy 8L/L/F Jo  pouad suljoseg
|emausal 10} pasosddy pieog - 21/0Z/S ‘@ouspuodsaliod LZ0Z niul pue [asaig
le uo paidod sem aseyond 4-0 8Ul pue oenEn4 a|lgelieAe | pL/EL/g uo (Bdd) 40} 10ENQUOD
Ui paubls pue pazi|eull Sem JOBNUOD — g1/9Z/¢ Usled slemausl | oeijeng | |6 ted soud 0 Lmurmmw%mwgﬁ
Ao Ag peaocidde ‘oeijjeng Aq joesuod paubisse sem ‘waisAs Buisuadsip 0z/LelE Jeah suo 0} pieme = XE) + 99} 1083U00
IO PIBUSUB 1BU} UOREOLIOU paAleoay — g1/g/0L "pieog [any auy Ui e)edioped NIy} [emaual | G/m juod pancidde | wpe gEO0 S (oBi1jend Aq -1 JUIOP
yole o) of M SIyl "SIVD PSUROU pue Jeak suo 1oj 0} Aljue sjeiedss B 1eah auo 1eshz |IounoD +SIdO paubisse sem) usueg SLvO MM D
pamaual sey ysued AID — 61/8/Z ‘paraiddy 3584 — 6L/FL/E | SB UONBIDIOS 18Ny pLOZ Ul | Jog anosddy waung olBN d-D Al3S oJu| 1o A0 SullosEs pue
N0 Jues JOBNUOD [emausy ‘pancidde pieod — GLIGLE | SLVO PapNoUl ysled Ay | o) paeog 0Z/LE/E0 | pLLO/LL | 9dUd IO PIOYSUBW | fqauy | |9SSIQ [9N4
IR 1ed €£/Z7°969% = J1eak 1ad ¥20e
"LL/£Z/Z U0 WNPUSPPY BIAINO $8SU0ASA) | o) ‘a7es 10 SjuswAed 7 . yBnoiyy (sasng B 01)
Jno s /L/0z/z Aq eiey anp saunbul “/L/Z/€ HOBA | 00g's1z'p 150D 1B10L (z ‘a[epsnoos) sieak aseyo in d/
anp s|esodold ‘suonnsul [eloueuy sidiNw 0} PayoIoS ‘pouad 1eak 2 1aA0 Aeg -s1pak dio9 [eyden 410
d=¥ — 21/8/z "sesng B 0L 104 st Buioueuld “[eAcidde Loy “sasng BIID 01 Lvee 1 Joy sosng anqnd Ry =]
PIEQQ [INy 0} SAOW 0} W) paroldde 394 - £1/9L/E "SBSN] | goueuly aseyaind/aseaT paaoidde lesaiq Bijo ESlIBWY . q0UEUld She
By 01 jo Buoueuy panosdde pieog - 21/1Z/8 sng eydeD pieog ¥202100 | 210Z4dy | 0L 8oueuld jo oueg ddy Buioueul 4
4
SJUBLILIOY | S3ION ~ Papiroid _ panoiddy ajeq ajeq e awen adA uonduasaq
jonpold /saoinies pieog pug uelg Jopusp Juoo ERTVNETS

SYjuoW ¢ 0} | UIY}IM uolay pieog Buipuad sjoaloid = an|g

_ mou [eaoisddy pieog spasu [ Waj| UOIOY = MO||DA

_

610Z ‘gl aunp

pieog S1V9 4o} Bunsiq juswsinsoid S1v)D




'61.0g-plw Buipieme pue sAep 09-0€ UIGHIM
no d44 ay) asey o} Buidoy aie ap uohewlojul sauyeb o)
sjuawpedaq SLVO l1e Wim Buppiom Joanju| Jo SyjUoL Jajje
‘d4y 2y Bupjesp uo Joamu| yum Buiiom S| JUsWIBINI0IH
SIVO — 6L/8/2 '6L/LF UO SLyD 0} juss MOA\ JO BIEMIOS ui3
adoog pasiaal e Lm abels Yeup auy ul (1S S d4y — 6L/Z/r | — S1EMYOS BPIM-LUBISAS 10} BIEMOS g >w du3
UONBYDINS YUM PIBMIO) 8AOW 0} QYD WOl JUawnoop | 44y Ue anss! pue jjelp o} 2pIM
d=Y Jo [eroidde Bujieme ‘eeidwod yeip (euid — 6L/LE/S | Buppom Ajuauno si 1vD asl QgL aglL agl wa1shs 2Jemijos
‘d<Y 3U} JO SjuaLWLlNbal [BSIUYD3) 84} 193U PapILIGNS
s|iesodoid ay) yI Buwwisisp ul Apealb (D3d) eaniwwo
uonenjeas |esodoid SiyD digy (M S0UBSISSE  SIY |
JaW ale sjuswaJinbal pue spasu uolEsyDads [B2IULDS)
pue AAOS SLYD ainsus 0) paaladal sjesodold ay) Jo mainsl juswdojaasaqg
[eoluyoe} ay) ul sjuswpedaq Juswainsold pue || SIVD 81/91/8 paroidde 394 . :o_«mo_h_._uwam
}SISSE OS[E ||IM A3 L "d4M UB 10} UON|OS [EDIULDS) SIBMIOS Siiizin P . sAS du3
B 10} s0adg [eO1UYDa | PUE (MOS) MO 40 8d0dS pajielep e 8L/L2/8 panoiddy Buginsuod | ooosg
dojoAsp |Im JUBYNSUOD 8YL "81/1LZ/g Uo peAciddy pieog penoiddy pieog pieog 6LI0E/Y 8L/LI6 vLv'v6% Joanju| - slemyosg
"Yoea syjuow-g | Joj maual
0} suondo g yum JoBIJUOD IBSA-E "OU| ‘S901nag AJNoBeg s|emaual S3JIAIBS
i8Siap) O] papieme JoeNuUOD AIUNDDS — 9L/SL/L UO pieme ‘UONEI0| "PAIg BPUOIH SL/EL/LL JesA-suo }S092 |enuue ‘JU| ‘seoIAIRS pieng
jeuibuo paaciddy pieog 'pieog [Ny 0) 8A0OW 0] paaoidde 0522 SLV¥D 1B seoinesg panoaddy ) 240 L 000°2£2% fjnoag saIMBg
ssPIWWOD I94 — 81/g/LL Pancsdde pieog - QL/EL/LL psen Aunoes - 4/ 12 pieog 6LILEZL 6L/L/L "xouddy Jasi9M d4y Aanoeg
S
"JOJOBIUOD S80IAISS Jisueleled S yD Se uojeuodsuel) | (ezoz niyy s|emausal
AW 0} 10BAUCD JO piEME UE awv:mEEooE 31V .co_mmﬂw%mﬁ_._m# Hom:w_ou 129k 3u0 Z | 000°526'98 vav
synsal sspiwwo) uonenieag [esodold 8y} uo paseg [0 1eaf g /M J0BNUOD junowe .
Bugesw 384 —8L/ZL/L ‘Buesw preog gad [Hun paLslep JapInolg IAIBS N onowide | renusiod) e 10RNUOD dsueip | oe SEASS
PIEOE — 81/91L/L "AIN O} pleme pancidde pieog — gL/0Z/z | USUBL|-BIE] PRIOBIJUOD pieog LZ/0E/Y 81/9/5 leak ¢ AN d4y Jisueljeied
d
029veS
ciellellig]
"000°05$ 40 plousaIy} S.03D o584 10}
AU} UILIM ‘0Z9'vES JO [E)0) E 10J B210UD ONSd O} pSpieme 150D xouddy (o 10101)
8q |Imw 1O Jolo DZOTLSS 24 (M 6LOZAD JO Jspulewal "uondo [emaual BUO Ujim 0.9°16$ | @d10u) oJjed
Joj 1eQuOD (0£9'9E$ JO [BI0) B JB) PINY ISNBUXS [8saIp | GL/LE/ZL  ybBnow swsy BLILEITL
‘o suiqn} oynelpAy Joj S1WD UM SIOBANUOD AUSLIND | 953U} 10} PalOIOS SEM g1 yBnodyy jen4 azsainuy
oum ‘(000°SL$ Jo [BJO} B 4Oy jond zanbBiy 0) papleme | ue os ‘azaaluy 1o IO 6102 |udy zanb Joy :
3q (|IM B8zealljue ay) sieym ‘papieme aq 0] (10 Jojow | JOjoly Joj a%eld Ul }0BHUCD ul anoldde 180D |BlOL (azeayyyuy) pue
pue 9z8ay4fue 4o} g1| — 6L/2/y "Pascidde pieog — L/9Ly | OU sey Ajusund SIvD 0} pieog 6L/LEMCL 6L/LIL xoiddy | Jang zanBipy gl (10301) 11O
0
SJUBWILIOY | SAION papiAold panociddy ajeq ajeq iy aweN adA | uondiiasaqg
JaNpoid /Sa21A19S pieog pu3g uels Jopuap Juon BRIV VTS

Syjuow ¢ 03 | UIylMm uoljay pieog Buipuad sjosfoid = an|g

_ Mmou [eaosddy pieog spaau [ Wa)| uonoY = MOJ|PA

| eLoz ‘g aunp

pieog S1VvVD 10} _m:_“_.w_.._ jusuwiaindoid S1VvVO




S

CN pauUILLB)ap U2aq jou Sey pig 8|gisuocdsal pue S L6LS Buibieyo
AAISUOASal 1S3MO| UL "MBIASI JapUN ||1S 21e paAladal spig uoneys I EETE]
€IV — LLwL/LL ‘|ercudde o) pieoq |in) 0} W)l U} SAOW pleme Buibieys ¢ |jeisur pue
0} paloA 394 QAL AQ pagns pig aAisuodsal pue paoud 6102 Jo 8jep sy} 3uo pue snq suolnels abuey Asepeg
1S8MO| 8L} 0} SBSNQ 100} GE DMBIB € Jo aseyoind oy o} 'zz ge4 Aq | woly sieak Nu” “whw_m%m Buibieys papuayxa/m
JOBJJUOD JO pPIJEME UB papuawiwodal S1yD — Bunssw 394 2g o} AaAlleg | G xau s wvm.—mm_mm BN GEIE] (uce)
- 8L/ZL/L 'sesnq ¢ 1o} gAd 0} pieme panoidde pieog 8LiLIE 40} pasn suones ¢ fleIsut () sesng
— gL/9L/L ‘6l/zz/z Aa @1ep AUBAlBp UlM sasng 29|13 € 1o "suone}s Buibieyo asnoy uo panss| Od 3q ued BuiBieyo pue sasng
JBpJ0 U} J0} OAG Ol PanIWgns ‘O'd — 81/2/¢ ‘SpPeuw aq Ues -ul € |iejsul pue abuel gL/aL/L 10BeHUOD ¢ pue sasng . o309|3
juswAded slojeq sjuawaanbal 14 Jad sjuswnoop pleme | AIs)leq papusixa/m 100} GE paaouddy ¢ Joj 90lid ) 32015 se[oIyaA
-jsod uo Buniepn "paAieoal usaq aAey sasng € IV — 6L/L/S | 'S9SNQ oujose ¢ aseyond pieog £2/9L/10 8L/9L/1L0 pig [e101 € sesng Bujjoy .
48 ‘Yaleas LLOOLOOOVW# | someds
WVS pue ‘ajeoniua) Buikggo ‘apiyaa ay ul sjuauodwio) (15pio 10B13U0D Sl
40 1817 9% 'BouBWy Ang ‘'@’ ‘aseyoind sy} Joj pauleiqo jo1di@oas |ejoy LIS Vi ssed 71 suep
ale sjuawnoop vl 4 sleudosdde su) ainsua 0) JopuaA SIyl Jaye) 99°95/°681% (eurjoses) ouoseD JSUesL e
Uiim Bupiiom AQUSLIND S1 JUBWSIND0Id S1VD "L LO0L000YFH# JoBHUOD B1EIS Y] oYy iy suep 1
JOBIJUOD 2JB)S BUBISINOT 8Y) JO YO SIBS Sng BAleslD woly 8SBYDING 0} pusiuy QLILLIL Aep oGl % saje vav ¢ vav
lopuan pancudde syl woy peseyoind aq M S3DIYSA panoiddy 61L/0€/L gl/sz/e yoe3 I1es PRI saj2IyeA
patamod suljoseb asayl 'gL/gL/L uo pasoiddy pieog 8L/ZL/L panoidde 394 pieog pajewnss pajewnsa 22°25Z'€9% | shd sAnealn Buijjoy .
O itk LLOOLOOOPY# | coomas
NYS pue ‘ajesyiua) BuikggoT ‘sjoiyaa sy) ul syusuodwion JoenuUOD B1ElS V] U} (apio Jenuon .
JO 17 9% 'Bouswy Ang ‘a7 ‘aseyoind SiU) JOj PoUIE}O wol} 9SBY2INd 0} pusiuy 40 1d1398. 2818 V1 e suep
ale sjuawnoop Y14 sjeudoidde ay) sinsua 0} JOpUaA SIU) 1aye) aullose Sajce
Um BUBLIOM AUSLING S| JUBWBIND0I S1VOD “LL90L000YY# |  8L/91/8 peroidde 394 oY [ejol (surjose) sen” | Nsues]-eregd
JoBRJJUOD 3je)S BUBISINGT SY) JO JO SBJeS Sng aARRaI) guLz/8 Aep gL P AT AT A% ) — vav | vav
lopusa paaosdde sy} woy peseyaind 8q M BRIYSA 8l/L2/8 paacuddy 6L/1L0/2 8L/szZ/8 yoe3 Ies o015 sapoIye
pasamod aujjoseB siy] -gL/Lz/g uo peaciddy pieog panoiddy pleog pieog pajewnsy pajewnsa 22°252'€9% | sng aAleal) Buijjoy i > A
0zZ0z aunr ssasoud
jemaual Uelg
'saoud swes e /L/Le/8 cZ/LEB Bk Z7ZILE/8
NJy} JOBIJUOD pusixa ybnouyy LLILLI8 154 0000028 NIyl Slemaua)
0) psaibe Jeakpoog S|emausal nay} si 511500 1E9A BUO Z /M
‘utlsyoI (g) g 1eedpoon (z) i teak 1eafpooD) | sbeseny 910z 0Z/LE/8 NIy} s1esk
‘aucisabpug (1) woy spiq ¢ peaeosy S1vD ‘Buluado pig auo ¢ /M Yim £ 1o} Joenuo)
LLIZZ[9 "JOopuaA 3[qisucdsal pue aAISUOdSal }Samo| ay) Sem LU/ L. penoidde 394 sieah ¢ 1oy Jjoenuo) Lo 271 (soueusjuiep)
suoysefpug 1ey) paulLIsiap sem )| -£1/0E/9 Buc)sabpug LLI8LIL joeluoD uaang (sieah g ‘suonelsado ail sesng 1o}
0} 10eAUOD jJO plEME UB puswwodal sidag juswainoold LLIgLIL panoiddy |eniu| 104 um“uu 1s9) | aui) sesuswy Aiddng aseaT ali|
pue JuielN SIVD-LL/EL/L "LL/8L/L uo paaosddy pieog paaciddy pleog pieog oz/Le/e LLILI6 000'009% suojsabpug [euiEN H .
SAS VAV 2 OdV “IAV tosdng S .
10} sbelanon soUCUAUIEW RyuRsieg fueuem SalIAlB8g
"BL/LE/L NIYY 8L/L/8 WO SWRISAS VAY B OdV AV | AuBuep) ® souBuUSiUIBA SLILLIL R ‘sanueLem IR0 ‘Woddns | O} AISINOY
Joj aBeianco Muelem pue uoddns yoes) meuas o) [eAosdde ‘poddng yos | paaoiddy ‘Yoddns yoa) myosg Yoo Jo} ase o
pieoq Buipuad wey| - 8L/ZL/L "BLILLIL UO panoiddy pieog |  8L/zL/. parcidde 394 pieog 6L/LE/L gL/Lig joseshauo | YDJBNSINOY | sojnisg M}os
- papiaoid paroiddy ajeq ajeq Jury awepN adA] uonduosaq
Sjusiliog / sejoN jonpoud /sadIAlag pieog pugy Hejs Jopusp Jjuon 0IAIRS

SYJuoW ¢ 03 | uiyim uonoay pieog Buipuad syoeloid = an|g

_ mou [eAaosddy pieog spasu [ WBY UOHOY = MO||PA

6L0Z ‘gl aunp

pieog §1vJ 103 Bupsi Juswiaindoid S1VD




lyg
Py que|d g 13D Jisuel |
13ig peOY SUBjd PUE Jajuan Jisuel ] eue}og 18 seojMles
"IOPUBA 0} | BUBLOD B SSOIAIBS  Uonoodsu| juspisay 2606102 Od dnoug uonjoadsu| juapisay
JUBS pUE PaINDaXa JOBJUOD — GL/gZ/S | pue Bupsa) sieusiely epinoid o) J0BRAUOD | nuon usHLM 0Z/08/e 6LIZIY 000'0S% elog eyl p Bupsal sjeuaepl
. saljljioe
Aaning Sl
JOpUBA 0) | g UOROBdSU| BNS (IMOQ B PUB JUBWSSSSSY | ososlozod | HEIS Joue "au| PAIg BpUOl] 0522
JUSS puB PaINosxXs JOBJUOD — G1/9/9 | usuodwo) Buiping e 9)9|dwod 0} JUBYNSUCD | nuos uspum shep sy BLI6Z/E 00s‘st$ ‘HO3L1L09D S1VD JO JUDUISSaSSY
“JOpUBA 0) uoneoyddy JueI) pue osioid 1HE W0 |  gyi610z Od Jwy xepy | Uopesodion | @UBISISSY uojeoi|ddy
JUSs pue pajnosxe JOBJUOD — GL/0E/S | SI0BdSE UlBLeD yim S1y0 ISISSE 0] JUBYNSUOD | nuog usnum BLILE/CL 6LIVZIS L19'S¥$ g1NH ueis ding Loa sn
paaouddy ajeq aleq aweN
SjUBLILIOD POPIACIH SIDIAIDS 039 pug uels | junowy | Jopuap uondiuosag

‘039 Aq 108loid penoudde jsejel sjeaipur siyblyBiy mojak

‘epualbe Bunsaw pieog w_._é@_w._. uo ag 0) pa|NPayos s a|ge|ieae
UOREPUSLULLIODSY PJeMY JOBJUOD °,0€ JaquseioN Ag anp s|jemaual )
aq |Im sjesodold “siesodold [enuaod ejdinL o) paoIoS 120k M.w_mmwﬁmhm mr_mwwwwhmmwwwoa
usag sey d-4y — 9L/0L/LL ‘PaAIeoal siesodoid ¢ Buowe S92IASS SIEMIOS U0 Z/M d Ao’ &
1s8yBiy paloas oym ‘01607 Jus|enoD 0} 334 Aq percidde pue BunsoH sapnjoul %wmmmmwn_f sieaf ¢ mﬂm%%%mh%m 21607 mmw__w_,ww ublseg-ey
plemy — 9L/SL/ZL "lSqaM mau payoune| — £10Z AInp - ubisag-ay 8}SGaM pieog | BL/ILERZL | LLILO/LO sjewps3 jusjeron 3NSIIM S}sgap
“Moam SIU] Jale| JUas aq ||Im pue
Zl Jo pesjsul sasnq g jo aseyoind ay) 108|181 0) pabueyd
ag |Im "O’'d a2y} wawsbeuew Ja4 "9L0z "08Q ul jeAcidde
pieoq aouis Bulpusd 'O'd  31EPAN — Zijke/e (pPloy pIg 3y Lo 13 pouad Aiany
I N S , [Elej
uo) S85Nq § 10} O 8Nss! 0] 0J0 Woly Hd paroidde swewubissy | OP'92L'900'GH yiuow g 0] 9}
Buiemy —ZL/LL/y 'SYUOW 9| SI eep Aisalep L s o_%wmom._wom . 810 95q/mON
8yl 'O'd Bupuss aiojaq wayl wou ol wy Ang 10 yaam sieak g Jano sanuswe m_.:nm:“wm*u i
uo Buniepy 'sesng g Joj Bl 01 deem siy) panssi 91/02/Z1 810z paIBpIc 5q pappe () sesng
8q M /"O'd Bulpusd — L1/21/L - BilD 0} Juss "O'd oseqmnd oy | 0eamon | penss | "MZZSE9S | 4 eoudsnqieg | 8L M
LL12|L "ooueUBIUB) S1VO Ag panleoss ussq aey 0F'29€'190'S§ “O'd [EI0L |  peAciddy ul Asanijap usag gjooseyong | I19SSIP M SE so0IS 12s91q
$8SNq g ||e 1By} pPayijou Sem Juswainoold — 6LIE/L | ed 082'Lzy$ :eoud wun sng pieog sesngg | sey'oOd 18pI0 € o011 B | Buyoy SI[IIUSBA
‘ellajold pue
1ah|4 MBN ‘QAE WOY SPIg £ PaAIBDaY SL1VD — LLIGLIOL
‘8]Ep-0] SpEW US3Q SEY pPIEME JOJ UONEPUSLILICOS) suone}s
,.mE_o_EE,o 5/ set0N ~ paplroig ~ penouddy [ 9jeq ?jeq A eweN [ odAL [ uonduoseq
}onpoid /sedinies | pieog | pugy - ue)g Y| Jopuap juoy | eolAIeS
m.._u_._cE € 0} | uiyum :o_uo< ﬂ..mom m::ucon_ sjoefoid = an|g _ mou [eaoiddy pieog wumm: | Wi9}| UolDY = MO||DA _ mSm ‘gL aunp
_ __pleog g1v9 10 Bunsi juawiainooid S1VI




L

¥ SBY 10BIU0D

(eoueusjuiep)

ay)} papleme ag pinom [@n4 zanbipy 10 spouad Jesh () suo aAISSa29Ns (f7) JNOY ‘BL/LE/CL (110 Joj0N) npoi a1eie
! Sjanpoid pajejay
‘0Z9'FE$ 10} 10 Jojo 8uy pspieme | 0} dn sige|lene suohdo [emaUSY J0BAUOD LLOZ | MUY LL/LL/L 0Z97ES T
80 pinom 8210yp onldd ‘azeauNuy | 'BL/LE/ZL UBnoJy) 1oBnUO) "BZ8aluY pue IO parcidde T@0100) a1 sa|ddng B
PUE |1 4010 IO} PIIIIOS L1 — BLJZMF | 1010W Joj uondo [emausi (L) suo sey g1 6102 pieog BLILEZL 6LIL/L onad leuslepy 10
‘Bunesw
pieog Jedoxd oy e psjussald
ag pnom  yoym ‘joeiuos  ssbBuo) syjuow g
B OJUl JBju2 0} 9S00UD ABW S1VD ‘Aiessaoau Jjeuonippe
‘weiboid 10|ld JBUy "SIy} paidedoe | punol SB SBale JBUJ0 PUB SBAIBS SIVD ue mausl B
pleog auy pue Bugssw piecg | 1Byl SE3JE JUSLIND BU} JO BPISIND Jaule S8INol 0} uondo/m ouj weiboid
8y} }e passnosIp sem syl — 6LSLE | S1VD anes of weiBoid jond ysuencioln 6LISLIL 6L/6L/19 8L10Z/Z1L 000°SZ$ ‘ooTsues| 10]Id }SUeJOIDIN
"JOB1JUOD JO PIEME BUIpUSLWLLIODa) uoneslidal gy 3 @belo)s pnojp Jusweoe|dal —— PepUBLLILLOIRI
FENET 030 uss aimua,\ | juelsul ‘sajepdn JA ¢ ‘uopnjos Jaalas dnyoeg -81L074 d] layen 030 antirdd
papuaLWILLIODal D3d's|esodoid | JaAIas 8uUO Ul ||B pPUB S8pnjou| “Jaalas dnyoeq 8LIZ1I9 seibojoulyoa ljady
€ pPaAiadal pue pasiuaApy - gLog 1dy | Bunisixa g1vyD J0) wejshs 1| dn-yoeq Jesk G | zgogLoz Od £2/0€/9 8LILIL 8ze'eTs ainjuap Janteg dn yoeg i|
‘papsau se 030 aul Aq paubisse syse] osiu
JBylo pue aouepinb ‘sISAjeuE ‘UONEYNSUOD gL/ LWMM#MWOO Bupjnsuo) 030 ayr o) Mom_.._”wm___mwe. [eoads yH
‘suolouny YH paziepads Jayjo pue | ‘soipe Jo Aem AQ  S80IAIBS/S80IN0Sal MM Z0121L0Z Od (14 058) dHH PEHUOD)
aouelsisse yH Bupnsuon gLoz unp | sanebissaul jenuspyuod sepiaoid juelnsuod U0 UBNLIM 6L/LE/S gL/L/9 000'05% JjalaAz aeQg juelnsuod ¥H
'000'0G$ JUNOWe J0B1JUOD XE v 40 dnoug
‘810z Iel "sebueyo Jayjo oN '6L0Z (Buifgqoj) saoiAIas [BUONEINPT PUB SUCHE[OY " M%NQ_N_.M& WY XeW ABayens m:_u_:m:ou
ybnouy) 1oeiuoo pusixd — LOZ B | ‘sieyy |ejuswuIBA0) Sapinoid  JUBHNSUOD | nquos uanupm BLILEIZL 6L/L/L 000°05% ujaynosg suolje|ay juswuiaAon)
000'0€$ JO Xew pue Jy/0G$ 10} | "0} ‘SUONHEIOU0DBI HUEQ ‘S8|qeAi@dal SJUeld 10
pe)si] $80IAI8S Ul 8OUBULY JO J0J0BIIQ | UOHEOULSA ‘SJUNCODE BUIOUCOS) Ul SOUBISISSE |  |11610Z Od Penuon
Aq pepseu eouelsissy — GL0Z AW | uim jusupedaq soueuld spinoid 0} JUBYNSUOD | puod uspum 6LISIL 6LiSIY 000°0£$ Sl 2IA juejinsuo) |eoueuly
AON ybnouyy w02 AON U0 wa_%N:_w_mm Bupelad ey S1vD °ud ._ohcm_u“__wmm _MMHE m Unmmuwﬂm_ 2M uopisod
0} 6l JOQWDAON UO JOpUSA O} Juds | Wea) Juswabeueuw Jojuss sy pue g|vD isisse L£2810Z Od WY Xep ‘Auedwon 00D S1VD 10} S32IAIRS
SEM P3a00.d O} 0ION —8L0Z ‘6L AON | 0} Hoddns |euoissajold epiroid o) JuBYNSUOD | nuod usHUM | BLIGLILL 8L/0Z/LL 000°sz$ 2 31098 1IIM Yaleag aAlnoaxy
‘lemausy
lesh suQ 'zLoz uebeq nuo)n BuUQD
‘sjsa} Brup uo aseasou| 0G0$ B Ajuo ‘seako|dwa aAlISuUas Ajo)es 10} Sa0IAISS 201AI8S JO anisuas Alejes o} sa0nag v g @
LM NSH] Ui JOBHUOD [BMURS LJUOW | BSNQe 8ouBjsqns/ [04odly g Brug 10j seoiss | ze06L0z Od syuow Z| wpy Aued payL
-z} 2y Bulpusixe sI S1vO — BLBIE | JoEdsiuwpy Builued piylL palepuew wid | 1uod usnim 0Z/0S/¥ 6L/LIS 000'5L$ NSHI € 10402y g Bnug
(mainay ybisieng
20UBJSISSY | MBIASY Em_wL,_m.;O V14 6L0ZA4 1o} sougisissy aAisuayaidwos
aoueldwoy (402) MIINEY |  MBINBY-ISOd ‘Hoddng uonoy BAlDSII0D (SYSE] g
wbhisieng  salsusysidwon  wid apnjoul 01 “LOZ Ul [BIUUBLL V14 Buiwoadn | | ozaioz# Od saje|oossy V.14 6L0ZAd)
‘PeInoaxs ‘pazijeul J0BNUOD — 6L/9/Z | JO uojesedald yim S1vD ISISSE 0] JUBYNSUOD | juod usium 6L/LE/8 sLveiZl LS8 L¥S ® Bopeld aouejsissy aoueljdwon
‘diysiepes| 51yD pue pieog
‘a)9|dwoo o} syjuow g Ajejewixoidde | o} juss aq |w podal [eul ‘Apmis uonesuadwos §adIAl8g
aqg pinoys sulawl] "S1vyo 10} [esodosd AJejES 10} S1@yJeW Je|iwis o) siedwoo palBUILLB) jjauag
papigns  Jaybejlen  —  gL/0z/LL | pue diysiepes| SLYO LM }98W 0] JUBYNSUOD |  nuoD usnum mun 6LILIL 000'st$ Jaybejen Apnig dwog Aiejeg
"pazijeuld JOB1IUOD — 8LIZ LIV
'21/1€/Z1 ubnoiy pusixe pue
'GZ9'Z1$ 4O JUNDWR JUSLIND 0} G9/'8L§
pPY _umummﬁn PRNUOD -8L/9Z/L
‘BL/GL/S YDNoIY} pusixe pue (06.L°Z$
PPV :pOpUBLY JOBIUOD — BL/6L/L (8¢ (e8¢ ¥d) shumeiq jemdeaucy
'6102/1/6 UBNOIU) PUSIXD PUE 0FI'ZLS | -dd "BNS HEWBAA / BuBLOD je swuawaroidW| |  1cos10z Od jwyxely | "2u] ‘8uo9 HELLeM RURHIOD
PPY :papuswy joBJJUOD — 61/ZZ/S | GNH lISUBl] WUBU| By} SpiA0d |Im JUB)NSUOD 1Ju0) UM 6L/SLIS 8LOLIV 0z8'ov$ ’® @0JUON ABY
SJUBLUWIOD | SAION papiaoid paaoiddy ajeq aleq e awepN adA ) uonduosaqg
jonpold /sedIAIag pieog pug Heg Jopuap nuon RN ETS

Syjuow ¢ 03 | UIYlim uonay pieog Buipuad sioeloid = anig

_ mou [eaoiddy pieog spaau [ Wwaj| uoidy = MO|[@A

| eL0z ‘gL eunp

pleog S1Vv9 40} bunsi jJuswalindoid S1V9I




Janl|o |
sannp Jaylo . 5 _:mﬂ 4) 91 juswabeuey
pue QOO wusul ayy 1sissy — gL0Z “AduedeA OOD Dullly yum sisisse pue 00D 8L1Zz/0}
18G0JaQ “Jopuaa Sy} Upm joBnuod | wusiul sy Ag suonerado gy Jo 1yBisieno 9028102 Od 1y Xepy ‘sausnpu| | JOIUBS S1VD 0} JOSIAPY
mau e uo Buppom SI S1vD — BLILIE | J0) seowmuss |euoissajold sapiaoid JUBHNSUOD | npuog uspum 6L/8ZIC gL/ZZIoL 000°05% aby maN mcomum._mno 101ULg
‘s|seq papaau 6
Se ue uo ‘QyD pue Jabeuepy jusawaindold uljnsuoy
1Y/Siy$ @1ey ‘suonoun) JusWaINd0ld | 8u} AQ peuBiSSE SB SYSE) JUBWSIN00.Y JAUl0 BLIOLG jusLIRIN0I
: § 6 A Zapueuiay jugjinsuo)

pozielpads o0 pue  SJUBJSISSE | PUB 'S8DIAISS ||BD-UO, Uim Buijiom Ajleayneds Z018107Z Od iy Xep
luswainooid Buginsuop — gLz 3des | ‘seopuss jusweinoold  sepinoid  JUBINSUOD | xuon uspum 61/6/6 8LI0L/I6 000°05%$ Ayjey juswiainoold

‘PINi4 1sneyx3g
[@s81g pue 10 eulqin] 2NnelpAY o}
pIg 1SOMO| Sem [en4 zenbiy "aseai
[B3YM B PIN|4 UoIssiwsuel ] ‘|10 Jojop
‘10 Jes9) - Joj pig }Semo| 8y} Sem IO (pini
JSBOD UNS — "S}aNpold palej@y |10 0 Jsneyxa
fanep pue aseyound ay) Joy sianddns |asaip
ojeiedas z o0} pileme pig mau ‘1o Uy
peAcudde pieog —LL/LL/L ‘Auoyne olinelphH)
ployseiyl 03D 8y ulym sle pue 04979t%
BL/LE/ZL MUYl BL/L/L JO pouad ay) oy ong
1eak sUO Jo) pamaual aq ||IM SIOBJIUOD zanbipy
asayl .._m.:u_ zanBiy wou sjonposd 1EIUOD YoBS
10} 0L9°9€$ PuE }SBOD UNS WoOY 104 000°05%
sonposd 10} §90°LL$ ©O) 1SOD [enuue "9Z984Jue pUE |10 J0JOW BIE SWa)l Z 9S8y L 0 Unoue
pajoaloid ay) Buuamo| Agalay) ‘ebesn ‘61L0Z 1eah au) 10} 000'0.LS ARIEWIXOIddE wmom_ — (asealb
pajedionue |euiblo ayy uely ssa| yonw 1e pajewnss s eoud se ‘|eaocsdde 1o} pieog o} Uw_ _o:mm:_c.w [@aym pue
ale /1L0Z 3AD Jo} sjonpold psiejsy ob |Im asay] ‘sAep OE 1Xau sy} LIyIM palioljos m.mmm\,oan_m piny 'sueyn
IO 8y} Joy abesn au) 1ey) paulwlaiep aq [|IM 91| MaU Y PIq 24 ||IM ‘Sasealoul 0 ajge RIETHTITS
usag sey 1 — LLSL/ZL  Cudy aoud Jaybiy 0} anp ‘pamaual Jou Sway| 1030 S1VD ‘110 Jean))
ul 0£9'LG$ 10y ZenBipy 0} JoRHUOD |10} b SO0°LLS
anoidde o) pleog "0/9'9£$ 10} sway 'asealoul 10} sucneINdeD |dd apinold Ryl SlqelEne TSEon
JaU10 10} S1VD UM JoBAUOD ARUSLND | O} SPaaU JOPUSA "[EMBUSI BU) JO Bl 1B |dd 8Y) s|lemauay ang 020z Uep 40) §L0z ‘1dos
Ayl pue ‘000‘GlLE Jo) eZsauynuy U0 paseq juswysnipe aold "zz/9L/L ubnoiyy 1eah auo Aq ssaooid Aiinbuj [emeusi Yelg

S3UBWILIOS | SBION papiAcld paaouddy ajeq ajeq Jwy awieN mn.» 1 uonduaseq
; 1ONpo.l4 [SaDIAIBS pieog puz el e JOpusp n[uon 92IAIBS

Syjuow ¢ 0} | UiylIm uondy pieog Buipuad syoelold = anig

_ mou [eAolddy pieog Spasu | WA} UOIDY = MO|IPA

| 610z ‘gL unp

pleog S1V9 10 bunsi jusawainsoid S1VI




o¥:526:91LS 99'020°L$ [9@'ceg'6S  [89°09F°001% |[6iEWL 65Z°6} 6896'641 |I=30L

0F'STE'9L1LS

00°0% 205 a9IAI9S ON| ©21AI9S ON| 991A1as 93d4| 821A19S ON| 32IAI9S ON|20S urel] Bep j amnys AsisAlun woayinog 0Q
[l A Svl‘e 8)AISS ON| 9IIAI9S ON|FGV6E'CS 30IAI2S ON| 921AI9S ON|GP1 ' sdo)g paji] pAlg BpHold| 2L
L TA A LOEY 6L TGS 8¥'607$ FLSRACTAAS €8z £8¥% LWG'e Jayeq [ AISISAIUN uIBYINOS / [BUlLISE SIVD) 0L
YS'EESS £82°} Gees 00'0F$ 61°58r$ e 99 0611 103enID [eRIp3N| 09
o'8sP'es 02£'§ G0 L02% 6£°082$ AR DL wat ] ¥ee 66 LI¥'y 12Usya0 f U |BSNLO / PAIG BPMOId 1SET| 65
TE0S0°e$ 90g’s 29149s ONlgv 2¥v2d ¥8'208'2% 93AIBS ON| 96T 058’y J2USUYDQ [ U [B3N,O  PAIG Aesinod 8¢
Z¥r'8e0’LLS  [Zle'al 0.°'2¢8% £0'5¥8% 69°0.£'6% EL¥' L 29ty LEPEL uq uabalg  pY sBundg |lamuasls) [ PAg 33104 POOMIBYS| LS
FAR AT £65°01 696.€% 02694 £6°699'GS (AR} 6 LE0'6 fysiaan uieynog f podily oNoN / YMON AMH sully| v
SPyLeLls  |9e5'2Z BV ivi$ 86°2.8% 86°389'6% A lee'e L9v'al Ns1/pd pueluybiH| Iy
L5°ZL6°YS 8ve’l £gcees L6GLPS £8°CCT Y 295 189 666'G abiaqne, f a49plies [ BUBHOD| 9%
9L'vPLGLS . [606'LE A1°0EE' LS |992Er' LS |eeTlerZle  |19L°2 kA G/9'6e pAlg BPHOId:L b
L9 Lg  |s15°02 (AR 2Lig0'it  |eL'9rses 316'L £51°T P89l PY Aueid W
8LevZ’es yer's FASAVA S 655918 196,828 0g¢e 0ge Frl'y iQ 19ys0d| €3
1£780F VS 906°2 olL-Gc6z24 06°60¥$ Le10L'es 3%°] 128 ¥rl9 SAY SuInOqQUIp | ZT
SCEVEYS 068°L £9°0/2% 519824 50'982'€$ XA ozs £¥8'9 AAY spieljied 1z
$8°989°G4 8056 6C°212% 86°89¥% 85°000°6$ [#A4 oF. 062’8 Amy) uelpedy yHoN| 02
Pl P35S Ge9°L STAHNAS 8£'8LES 16'0E0'v$ 95¥ 869 1259 [lely BuepO) [ puepabll: gL
16'E20°9% ZeLZL 21°G0¥$ ZZ'08r3 Z59¢L°6% €0. LLO'L g1F 0l pY subjtad| L}
00°0% £z 93IAJ9S ON| 921AI95 ON| ©22IAd9s 9a4]| ao1aes oN| o21ndes ON|CE amnys yled joudes| gy
Z6'68Z°Z8 9es’e G5'86% [AXR 69'900'2% il 98¢ 9.6 YLOMISDID [ pY Juno|g [ sYeQ usi9)  §i
5021828 |bsS's Lz'ecls G/ '65¢% 60¥L¥'CS 9ze 9.5 259'y 1S HoARs00Y /4g Hdjeg sewoyl| ¥l
L0°e6Y'es 90z'g G9e0zs S5 LIES 188628 ¥or £e8 6069 AMH uosiayer /1S JuawLIzA0D | ZI
£6'652°¢$ 8EL'E GZ061% L¥GL1% 0z ¥e8’LS 182 0ee Lzl'e B[[IAPUR[JOTS [ BAY pUZ/ [ J0JEINDII] SPISULION L
14745 %] ogy's 09'Z8l$ GB'¥ecs £8°0¢9c$ Gl¢ FAtY £25'9 3]IIAPUBRODS  AysIaAlLN UIBYINOS [ AMH J1uLdg| D)
€0'9LE° LS 600°¢ |6z s0L$ GZ'96% BV LLL'LS cee gle [Re 00ug / @AY Bunoy sng 8

INNIAIY |[diysiepiy | Aepung Aepanjes Repoop Aepung Repinjes | AepMaapn aleN 23noy JaquinN
1oy
av1iol INNIATYH diHSH3dIy

610¢ AVIN




05°1L0¢ $ 1211 - $ |0 {6L0Z/S2/Z0 9oIrloS popud) ssaidxT umojumoq j Modiy| €01
DIAISS a3l A% FOIAIDS 93l (206G apnys >u._m._m>_:D wsyinog 08
LWoBL’L $ |8cL'o PG 6E'T ¢ |SPL'9 sdojg paspwi] pAlg epuold]  Z2
102822 $|166'c ¥6'5/9'C $ [z0e'¥ i9yeg ; AHSISAIUN WIBYINOG [ [EUIULIBL S1VD| 0L
95'9ZY $ [c28 ¥G LS $ 82’1 loje[noalg |esipaly| 09
Li'Gel'e $ |ov9'y ¥9°85t'S $ |o8°6 lausysQ / uT [eaN,O / PAI BPUO|4 3sea| 6§
£8'¢20'¢ $ |510'G z8050°c $ loog's _ JausysQ / u [esN,Q / PAIg AesanoD| 8¢
GC'eSE 0l $ |GE6'GL reen’ll s |zigol py sbundg |[amusalg f pAjg 12104 poomlayg) /S
18'602'¢ $ |6¥0'V 0 0 (610Z/£2/20 92iAI0S popud) PAlg BAEL [ UT BIIISNIQ / lIEIN O3 1BIN| 9G
04°96L'C $ 601’ 0 0 (6102/52/20 201108 papud) D3Ud 4S / PAIE POl JseT| &S
or'cl8's $ [265°6 57159 $ [€65°01 Hodiry o139  AJISI9AIUN UIBYINOS [ YUON AMH aully| 5
£5°0£8 ¢ [9z2°1 0 0 (6102Z/5Z/20 a2irias papud) 10jejNDIID J9Xed| 6
21700171 $ |¥02°L 0 0 (6L0Z/52/Z0 02intoS popUd) 10JeN2IID SO UBID| 0§
80'186'C] $ 169¥'62 Sy L $|965'CC NS/ Pd pueybiH| Lt
- $ |0 16216} [ (6102/¥2/20 o208 uebag) abiaqne, j aisples [ BUEMOD| 9F
£8'862'% $ [ze2'e 0 0 (6102/c2/20 221105 papud) abieqne,] [ 1070 / 219pien| oF
GE'SGY'SL $ [s80'9¢ oL¥rL'GL  $|606'LE pAlg BPUOLd| bV
8F'BES' LI $ [999°12 1S9¥C' L $|S1S02 pydueld| ¥
¥1'6Z¥'C $16.1'¢ 8LEVT'E $ |vey's 1q Jeysod| €2
vL'¥7I8°E ¢ |269°9 L€ 00V ¥ $ (905°2 DAY UINOQUIM| TZ
10252 $ [g2g's eeehe'y $ (068", BAY SpalMIed}|  1Z
L¥'192'S $ [z62'6 G8'989°G $ [905'6 Amy] ueipeoy yuoN| 0z
G0'9/6'C $ [18p'L 71 '¥8S'v $ 1592 1ley euepog  puepabll| 8l
LL2LL'9 $ |epS'T) 167120'9 $ eeLelL Py supjiad| Ll
9DIASS 9914 L SoIMDS 881 |£2 Aajjoil yied joudeg| 9l
- ¢ |0 26'632°C $ joes'e (610Z/PZ/20 aoiaies uebag) YUOMISAID [ Py uno|g; Sl
91'LE1'2 $|168°C G0'ZI8'C $ |PSS'S IS HoAasoOy [ iQ pdjpQ sewoyli vl
99°0/¢'S $ [v6¢6 06V’ $ (902’8 Amp uosiagar /15 JUswLIBAOD | Z]
9.°2L0'E $ (9/¥'F Z6'652'C Y 9|IIAPUBJOIS [ BAY pug/ [ 10JeINDI1D SPISYLON| LI
19°199' $ (029’9 reTL'y $ (08¥'L Aisianiun waynog j AmH 21u29g| 0}
0L LwL'L $ [ss9'e £0°91E') $ |s00'e DG /9AY BUnNcA sng| g
INNIAIY dIHSY3a INNIATH dIHS¥aar S41N0Y| #
810z 6102

610C AVIN




MAY 2019

MILEAGE _
Route
Number |[Route Name RIDERSHIP| REVENUE |WEEKDAY |[SATURDAY |SUNDAY
8 Gus Young Ave / BRCC 3,009 § 1,316.03
10  {Scenic Hwy / Southern University 74801 %  4,128.42
11 Northside Circulator / 72nd Ave I/ Scotlandville 3,738] §  2,259.92
12 |Government St/ Jefferson Hwy 8,206] $  3,493.07
14 |Thomas Delpit Dr f Roosevelt St 5554 %  2,812.05
15 |Blount Rd / Crestworth 3,536] §  2,285.92
16  |Capitol Park Trolley 23| Free service
17  |Perkins Rd 12,132] $  6,021.91
18 |Tigerland / Cortana Mall 7,635|$ 4,584.14
20 |North Acadian Thwy 9,508| $  5,686.85
21 Fairfields Ave 7,890] §  4,343.33
22 [Winbourne Ave 7,506 $ 4,408.31
23 |Foster Dr 5424|$  3,243.78
M Plank Rd 20,515| $ 11,246.57
44  |Florida Blvd 31,909 $ 15,144.16
46 |Cortana/ Gardere / L'auberge 7,248| $ 4,972.57
47 |Highland Rd / LSU 22,596] $  11,314.45
54  |Airline Hwy North / Southern University / Metro Airport 10,593]$  6,514.52
57 Sherwood Forest Blvd / Greenwell Springs Rd 16,2121 $ 11,038.42
58 Coursey Blvd / O'Neal Lh / Ochsner 5,306] $ 3,050.32
59 East Florida Blvd / O'Neal Ln { Ochsner 5,370] $ 3,458.64
60 |Medical Circulator 1,283] $ 533.54
70 CATS Terminal / Southern University / Baker 4,307 $ 2,675.94
72 Florida Blvd Limited Stops 5,145| $ 2,394.54
80 |[Southern University Shuttle / Jag Train 502| Free service
RIDERSHIP | REVENUE
Total| %1 213,627[.$:1'6,925.40.




